

CITY OF WASHOUGAL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES Monday, February 10, 2025 7:00 PM

MEETING INFORMATION

Please click the link below to join the webinar: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/ 82060958759

- I. INVOCATION Virginia Seymour
- II. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Pro Tem David Fritz called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm.

- III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- IV. ROLL CALL

Present: Mayor David Stuebe and Councilmembers Michelle Wagner, David Fritz, Molly Coston, Ernie Suggs, and Tia Robertson and Student Representative Emily Bishop **Absent:** Julie Russell

Staff:

David Scott, City Manager Joe Walsh, Community Services and Strategy Director Robert Zeinemann, City Attorney Daniel Layer, Finance Director/City Clerk Zane Freschette, Police Chief Rose Jewell, Community Engagement Manager Amanda Goulding, Assistant City Clerk & Accounting Specialist

Motion: Excuse Councilmember Russell. Ernie Suggs/Molly Coston Motion Passed.

V. AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA

Councilmember Suggs added a speed bumps discussion to be discussed under council comments.

VI. PROCLAMATIONS - Career and Technology Education (CTE) Month

Councilmember Robertson and Mayor Pro Tem David Fritz read the proclamation in its entirety.

Margaret Rice received the proclamation on behalf of the Washougal School District.

VII. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Lauren Colas referenced Camas City Council's passing by a unanimous vote a resolution to oppose light rail. The residents in Clark County voted to oppose light rail three times in the

past. She proposed improved I-5 and additional new bridge instead. She encouraged Washougal to adopt a resolution similar to Camas'.

Margaret Tweet spoke in opposition to C-TRAN light rail and recounted the discussions to date. She drew attention to the reduction in CTRAN ridership and cost of the project.

Douglas Tweet spoke in opposition to light rail noting the cost.

Susan Courtney thanked council for listening to the voters. She shared concerns with the predicted earthquakes and condition of the bridges along with the costs; suggesting a third bridge.

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA

The following items will be passed by a single motion to approve all listed actions and resolutions. There will be no discussion on these items unless requested by Council. If discussion is requested, the item will be moved from the Consent Agenda and considered separately - after the motion has been made and passed to approve the remaining items.

Unanimous consent to approve the consent agenda. Suggs No objections.

- A. Payroll Claims of January 31 2025, Totaling \$636,322.70
- B. Accounts Payable January 23-30, 2025, Totaling \$2,590,969.44
- C. Workshop Minutes of January 27, 2025
- D. Council Minutes of January 27, 2025
- E. Authorize the City Manager to Sign: 2025-2026 Collective Bargaining Agreement with Local 307-W of the Washington State Council of County and City Employees (WSCCCE) and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), AFL-CIO

AGENDA BILL #03-2025

IX. NEW BUSINESS

A. Resolution: Amending Chapter 2.A of the Personnel Policies Manual to revise the Non-Represented Employees' 2025 & 2026 Salary Schedules, Longevity Pay, Sick Leave, and Benefits

AGENDA BILL #04-2025

David Scott presented the staff report and recommended action. Through the consent agenda the council authorize the City Manager to sign the 307W Collective Bargaining Agreement .

Motion: Pass the resolution in the usual manner. Ernie Suggs/Molly Coston Motion Passed.

X. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

A. CITY MANAGER

David Scott reported on the Washington DC trip with David Fritz and Joe Walsh noting the subjects of the advocacy. Priority projects include PFAS, EOC, and Library. He spoke on the FY 2025, the railway crossing elimination grant, water quality, wastewater treatment, bio solids, and basic infrastructure.

B. MAYOR

Mayor David Stuebe reported on the Mayors dinner, CRESA meeting, and thanked council and staff for their hard work, and commented on the resolution for staff compensation.

C. CITY COUNCIL

Councilmember Wagner brought forward for discussion a resolution on CTRAN light rail.

David Scott suggested that council discuss this at the next workshop. Council concurred.

Councilmember Robertson spoke about the fire fighters visit to Olympia and online only CPR/AED training.

Councilmember Suggs gave an update on the Port and C/W Chamber. He asked that speed bumps be on an upcoming workshop agenda. He shared feedback from residents noting people like living in Washougal.

Councilmember Fritz reflected on the DC Trip.

Councilmember Coston suggested that a CTRAN resolution be focused on policy. There is an upcoming CTRAN Board meeting, agendas are available. Here upcoming activities include: Creative Arts District, Public Works Committee, Wellbeing Committee, and Riverside Church service.

Councilmember Wagner announced the upcoming Creative Arts District, Public Works Committee, GMA Comp Plan CAC, Community Development Committee, and Parks Board Meetings.

Student Rep Bishop recognized the girls scout troop present at the meeting. She commented on the CTE program, upcoming play and sporting events, and her Gold Award support night.

XI. ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 8:02.

Mayor

City Clerk

CITY OF WASHOUGAL

PAYROLL CLAIMS VOUCHER APPROVAL

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE SERVICES CHARGED ON THE VOUCHERS ATTACHED HAVE BEEN FURNISHED TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. I FURTHER CERTIFY THE CLAIMS BELOW TO BE VALID AND CORRECT.

FINANCE _____

WE THE UNDERSIGNED COUNCIL MEMBERS OF WASHOUGAL, WASHINGTON DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE EMPLOYEE CHECKS 10702-10704 and EMPLOYEE VOUCHERS 33508-33598 ARE APPROVED FOR PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF \$636,322.70 ON THE 31ST DAY OF JANUARY.

FINANCE COMMITTEE_____

FINANCE COMMITTEE_____

FINANCE COMMITTEE



Washougal, WA

Check Register

Packet: APPKT01972 - KHAP012325

By Check Number

Vendor Number	l Vendor Name	Payment Date	Payment Type	Discount Amount	Payment Amount	Number
Bank Code: AP-Accoun	its Payable					
2200	ANDERSON SIGNS INC.	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	25.00	90247
227	CAMAS HEARING CLINIC	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	45.00	90248
246	CLARK COUNTY FIRE DIST 5	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	1,413.75	90249
125	CLARK COUNTY TREASURER	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	5,050.61	90250
809	CLARK PUBLIC UTILITIES	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	64.82	90251
4121	David Fritz	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	21.00	90252
619	DS SERVICES OF AMERICA, INC.	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	176.39	90253
3697	ELTEC SYSTEMS LLC	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	1,045.08	90254
4160	First Citizens Bank & Trust Company	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	219.30	90255
3713	Graphic Information System	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	244.98	90256
3737	Jubitz Corporation	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	2,505.46	90257
2019	KENYON DISEND, PLLC	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	7,395.35	90258
	Void	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	0.00	90259
454	L.N. CURTIS & SONS	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	655.34	90260
4197	Law Enforcement Information and R	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	50.00	90261
4043	Phoenix Asphalt Maintenance Comp	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	2,089.32	90262
1583	POTTER WEBSTER COMPANY	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	87.89	90263
3450	Rotary Club of Camas-Washougal	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	360.00	90264
3761	Securitas Technology	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	350.24	90265
2928	SILVER STAR TELECOM	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	1,750.65	90266
4212	Stellar J Corporation	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	2,348,768.93	90267
4323	Steve Kiser	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	550.00	90268
197	THE COLUMBIAN	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	127.54	90269
4036	Tower Development Inc	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	71,075.59	90270
2216	ULINE	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	2,611.09	90271
704	VANCOUVER GRANITE WORKS INC	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	716.12	90272
4167	Vancouver Janitorial Services LLC	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	11,789.00	90273
1774	VERIZON WIRELESS	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	4,549.71	90274
	Void	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	0.00	90275
1625	WA STATE DEPT OF NATURAL RESO	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	305.41	90276
785	WASHOUGAL LUMBER CO.	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	61.99	90277
2491	WIRE WORKS	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	359.35	90278
147	YATES MARSHALL, PLLC	01/27/2025	Regular	0.00	5,000.00	90279

Bank Code AP Summary

Payment Type	Payable Count	Payment Count	Discount	Payment
Regular Checks	34	31	0.00	2,469,464.91
Manual Checks	0	0	0.00	0.00
Voided Checks	0	2	0.00	0.00
Bank Drafts	0	0	0.00	0.00
EFT's	0	0	0.00	0.00
	34	33	0.00	2,469,464.91

Fund Summary

Fund	Name	Period	Amount
999	POOLED CASH - OPERATING	1/2025	2,469,464.91 2,469,464.91



Washougal, WA

Check Register

Packet: APPKT01980 - KHAP013025

By Check Number

Vendor Number	i Vendor Name	Payment Date	Payment Type	Discount Amount	Payment Amount	Number
Bank Code: AP-Accour	its Payable		, ,		•	
2964	ARBORSCAPE, LTD, INC	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	4,635.12	90281
3187	ASCAP	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	445.46	90282
714	CAMAS-WASHOUGAL CHAMBER OF	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	90.00	90283
125	CLARK COUNTY TREASURER	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	26,360.22	90284
809	CLARK PUBLIC UTILITIES	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	3,470.83	90285
762	Consor North America, Inc	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	10,575.98	90286
1896	COPY TRONIX	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	59.09	90287
3645	Dietrich Trucking LLC	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	3,833.92	90288
721	EVERGREEN RURAL WATER	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	1,025.00	90289
4324	GEMINI GROUP CONSULTING, LLC	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	4,236.00	90290
379	GUNDERSON TIRE CENTERS	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	1,240.74	90291
4249	J. Greg Smith Associates Inc.	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	600.00	90292
2940	JACK PETERSON ATTORNEY AT LAW	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	4,400.00	90293
936	JACOB NICHOLS	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	37.65	90294
3737	Jubitz Corporation	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	1,430.71	90295
160	KEYS WEST	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	518.09	90296
454	L.N. CURTIS & SONS	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	306.92	90297
2017	LAKESIDE EQUIPMENT CORPORATIC	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	1,444.00	90298
4208	LEPS-PSS, PLLC	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	450.00	90299
747	MYRON CRUMPACKER	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	29.87	90300
4292	Northside Ford Truck Sales INC	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	1,047.04	90301
176	NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS CO	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	4,643.33	90302
2745	NORTHWEST PUMP & EQUIPMENT	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	18,959.29	90303
558	PITNEY BOWES RESERVE ACCT	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	2,500.00	
4315	Revolving Networks LLC	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	9,000.00	
2416	RIGHT! SYSTEMS INC.	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	5,108.83	90306
3278	SARKINEN PLUMBING, INC	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	1,580.67	90307
3849	Scenic 365 LLC	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	2,297.50	90308
192	SKAMANIA CO SHERIFF'S OFFICE	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	1,380.00	90309
3782	Solutions Yes, LLC	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	115.17	90310
651	SUMMIT LAW GROUP	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	39.50	
197	THE COLUMBIAN	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	19.79	
1846	US BANK OFFICE EQUIPMENT FINAN		Regular	0.00	558.46	
4298	Vincent Schneider	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	4,307.45	
208	WALLIS ENGINEERING	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	2,086.00	90315
3852	WASCO COUNTY LANDFILL, INC	01/31/2025	Regular	0.00	2,671.90	90316

Bank Code AP Summary

	Payable	Payment		
Payment Type	Count	Count	Discount	Payment
Regular Checks	44	36	0.00	121,504.53
Manual Checks	0	0	0.00	0.00
Voided Checks	0	0	0.00	0.00
Bank Drafts	0	0	0.00	0.00
EFT's	0	0	0.00	0.00
	44	36	0.00	121,504.53

Fund Summary

Fund	Name	Period	Amount
999	POOLED CASH - OPERATING	1/2025	121,504.53 121,504.53



CITY OF WASHOUGAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES

Monday, January 27, 2025

5:00 PM



MEETING INFORMATION

Please click the link below to join the webinar: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/ 85349220541 Joint Planning Commission and City Council Work Session

VIDEO I. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Pro Tem David Fritz called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.

II. ROLL CALL

Present:

City Council: Councilmembers Michelle Wagner, David Fritz, Molly Coston, Julie Russell, Ernie Suggs, and Tia Robertson and Student Representative Emily Bishop **Absent:** Mayor David Stuebe

Planning Commission: Meridee Pabst, Mike Lamb, and Larry Wagoner Absent: Jim Reinhart, David Szyplinski, and Travis Dutton

Staff:

David Scott, City Manager Joe Walsh, Community Services and Strategy Director Daniel Layer, Finance Director/City Clerk Mitch Kneipp, Community Development Director Teresa Stedman, Human Resources Director Rose Jewell, Community Engagement Manager Amanda Goulding, Assistant City Clerk & Accounting Specialist

VIDEO III. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Brian Beeson spoke about the petition opposing the Kysar Property being included in the Urban Growth Boundary.

Rick Jarckow, property owner within a neighboring cluster, expressed concerns regarding transparency, lack of public involvement, and environmental impacts.

Phyllis Carter concurred with the previous speakers and opposed urban sprawl.

Thomas West lives near the Kysar Property commented on the R-5 zoning designation and provided a history of the property and the cluster development. He spoke in opposition to the process and the proposal.

Kety Keown shared her concerns with fire access and egress in event of an emergency. She spoke in opposition to increasing density in the area.

Dean Allin questioned what would happen to the remaining Kysar property if and when a school is built. He voiced concern with the cluster development.

Jude Brunberg spoke about the short notification of the proposal and questioned the validity of this site being used for school given the lack of infrastructure and development costs.

Harley Horton stated that this was not in the community's best interest.

Ryan Dickersons questioned if this is the right place and time for this potential development noting the limited infrastructure in the area.

William Carter shared information regarding the environmental conditions in the area and the volume of water on the site; noting that this is an impractical site to locate a school.

Megan Light, an environmentalist, referenced her written comments submitted into the record. She shared her concerns with the lack of transparency of the school district's purchase of the land and spoke about the citizen petition. She asked the city council to scrutinize the proposal before making a decision.

Shamis Bair commented on the wetland and riparian habitat on his property and the Kysar Property which is currently zoned R-5. He gave a history of Kysar's development and urged the council not to approve the proposal

Councilmember Wagner asked for an overview of the proposal of a property owner asking to be included int he UGA.

Mitch Kneipp explained the process which is currently underway. This is a request from the Washougal School District to Clark County to have the property included in the Urban Growth Area. The school districts determines where schools are needed not the city. The city has not decided on the land use alternative plans. If the WSD determines it does not need the property the request would be pulled from consideration.

IV. NEW BUSINESS

None

VIDEO A. Community Development: Comprehensive Plan Update - Draft Land Use Alternatives

Mitch Kneipp introduced the Planning Commissioners present and Jessica Herceg, Dowl Consultant who presented the following:

- Project Overview The is mandatory as part of the GMA. This is the first step in the process.
- Project Schedule Work Plan
 - Land Use Alternatives January March. Once an alternative is selected then worksessions will address to the rest of the work.
 - Comprehensive Plan Element Updates and Associated Code Amendments April - July
 - Capital Facility Plan Updates August September
 - SEPA Documentation and Adoption October December
- Community Engagement
 - Spring 2024
 - Project Branding Washougal Onward
 - Development of Public Participation Plans

- Fall 2024
 - Community Advisory Committee
 - Pumpkin Harvest Festival
 - Community Survey
 - Comprehensive Plan Carnival
- Winter 2024-2025
 - Continue Community Advisory Committee meetings
 - Launch Housing and Climate subcommittee
 - Land Use Alternatives Open House
- Spring 2025
 - Continue Community Advisory Committee meetings
 - Continue Housing and Climate subcommittee
- Summer 2025
 - Additional workshops with the planning commission and city council
- Land Use Alternatives
 - What are we planning for 2045?
 - 28,274 residents. This number was allocated by Clark County.
 - 3,735 new housing units. The state has changed the GMA accommodated a variety of Area Median Income AMI by affordability levels.
 - 2,457 new jobs This is the total number jobs that will require land
 - How do we plan for this?
 - Evaluate land capacity within city and UA
 - Growth accommodation requirements
- Maps
 - Existing UGA and zoning was displayed along with UGB. Mitch explained how the job numbers were allocated to Washougal. The model was calculated incorrectly by the county they have since been allocated to Vancouver and Ridgefield.
 - Expansion area-47 acre expansion includes the request from the WSD
- What consultants heard from the community outreach:
 - Housing low, med, and high density defined plus affordability
 - Economic Development Business support, increase in retail/services, and more local living wage jobs
 - Infrastructure Walkable, accessible, connectivity, and safe along with improving systems
 - Environmental Concerns Preserve natural areas, protect tree, and improve access to recreation
- Alternative 1 This map embodies the the UGA and includes the expansion. There is no proposed zone changes in the downtown area. The city will be required to create middle housing regulations. The state has yet to determine how this will impact CCRs. Proposed split 60 residential/40 in the downtown and 50/50 in commercial areas
- Alternative 2 The maps are almost identical. This includes a northeast designation for multi-family housing. This increases to 40 residential/60 commercial
- Land Use Capacity Assumptions in commerical/town center, residential, and industrial zones.
- Questions and/or Discussion
- •

Discussion ensued on transportation infrastructure and history of the zoning designation Jessica explained that an expansion to the UGB for residential needs to be

demonstrated. She conflicts between state law and CCRs and HOAs was discussed. Excluding the WSD request would impact the job count in the comprehensive plan. The county is required to consider all requests as part of its analysis.

- Next Steps
 - February 26th Land Use Alternatives Public Presentation and Online Story Map of alternatives
 - March 12th Public comment period on land use alternatives concludes
 - March 24th Joint CC and PC Workshop to discuss alternatives and potential refinement and Preferred Land Use Alternative identification
 - April 14th Resolution to approve local preferred land use alternative at City Council regular meeting

V. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

A. CITY MANAGER

Deferred to council meeting.

B. MAYOR

Not present.

C. CITY COUNCIL

Deferred to council meeting.

VI. ADJOURNMENT

Meeting ended 6:47.

Mayor

City Clerk



CITY OF WASHOUGAL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Monday, January 27, 2025

7:00 PM



Please click the link below to join the webinar: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85349220541

VIDEO I. INVOCATION - Mike Hansen

II. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Pro Tem David Fritz called the meeting to order at 7:06 pm.

- III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- IV. ROLL CALL

Present: Mayor David Stuebe and Councilmembers Michelle Wagner, David Fritz, Molly Coston, Julie Russell, Ernie Suggs, and Tia Robertson **Absent:** Student Representative Emily Bishop

Staff:

David Scott, City Manager Joe Walsh, Community Services and Strategy Director Robert Zeinemann, City Attorney Daniel Layer, Finance Director/City Clerk Rose Jewell, Community Engagement Manager Amanda Goulding, Assistant City Clerk & Accounting Specialist

V. AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA

Mayor Pro tem Fritz added an Exempt Meeting after the regular council meeting.

VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Margaret Tweet spoke about the countywide vote against expanding light rail in 2012. An upcoming meeting with CTRAN and the upcoming vote regarding funding of light rail. She provided a copy of the City of Camas's resolution opposing CTRAN's Proposal. She included data on the current ridership over the river noting the extreme cost and asked council to oppose the light rail project.

Gary Gaskill spoke in favor of mass transportation. He does not support light rail given the historic background on the evolution of transportation.

VII. CONSENT AGENDA

The following items will be passed by a single motion to approve all listed actions and resolutions. There will be no discussion on these items unless requested by Council. If discussion is requested, the item will be moved from the Consent Agenda and considered separately - after the motion has been made and passed to approve the remaining items.

Unanimous consent to approve the consent agenda as read. Suggs No objections.

- A. Workshop Minutes of January 13, 2025
- B. Council Minutes of January 13, 2025
- C. Payroll Claims of January 15, 2025, Totaling \$404,936.38
- D. Accounts Payable of January 2-16, 2025, Totaling \$161,857.34

VIII. NEW BUSINESS

A. Boards and Commission Appointments - Planning Commission

Rose Jewell presented the staff report and recommended action then introduced Joe Zeiger.

Joe Zeiger shared his information about himself.

Mayor Pro Tem Fritz recommended that Joe Zeigler be appointed to the Planning Commission.

Motion: Affirm the recommendation to appoint Zoe Zeiger to the Planning Commission. Ernie Suggs/Molly Coston Motion Passed.

IX. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

A. CITY MANAGER

David Scott reported that David Fritz and Joe Walsh will be joining him in Washington DC next week. Councilmember Suggs, David Scott, and Joe Walsh will be the city delegation at the City Action Days. The next Zeilonki visit will be in late June and include David Stuebe, David Fritz, and David and Julie Scott. This travel will be paid by individuals and not funded by the city.

B. MAYOR

Mayor David Stuebe state that he met with the City of Battleground regarding CTRAN. He thanked Councilmember Fritz for representing the city on RTC. He is currently working with the Port and Camas to accelerate the slough bridge project/ He discussed City Action Days, the Poland trip, and commented on staff's good efforts regarding grants.

C. CITY COUNCIL

Councilmember Coston asked the council if they wanted a presentation from CTRAN and IVR prior to adopting a resolution since additional information is needed. She is currently on the chair of CTRAN.

Councilmember Russell announced the ECHO meeting on February 11 and would like more information on the CTRAN matter.

Discussion ensued regarding an opportunity to gather citizen input on CTRAN. **Councilmember Wagner** reported on the recent Art Commission and Parks and Cemetery Board meetings and the status of the Creative Arts District. She suggested having the Annual Planning session in May. She will email Rose a Dept. of Commerce link to share with council and is not opposed to a Resolution on the CTRAN matter.

Councilmember Robertsonagreed that a meeting with CTRAN needs to happen sooner than later. She plans to attend WSD Board meeting.

Councilmember Fritz gave an update on CREDC.

Councilmember Suggs noted the multi-cultural night was canceled. He shared that a Washougal graduate was killed by a drunk driver.

David Scott informed the council on what projects the delegation with be advocating for during the DC trip including the 32nd Street underpass project, EOC - Fire Station, and policy partnerships.

X. ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 7:55 pm.

Mayor

City Clerk

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

By and between

THE CITY OF WASHOUGAL

And

LOCAL 307-W

of the

WASHINGTON STATE COUNCIL OF COUNTY AND CITY EMPLOYEES (WSCCCE)

And the

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY, AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES (AFSCME)

AFL-CIO





EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2025 – DECEMBER 31, 2026

ARTICLE	TITLE	PAGE
1	PARTIES, PREAMBLE	2
2	RECOGNITION	2-3
3	UNION SECURITY	3-5
4	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	5-6
5	UNION / EMPLOYER RELATIONS	6-7
6	EVALUATIONS, PERSONNEL FILES	7-8
7	GRIEVENCE PROCEDURE	9-10
8	CONDUCT, DISCIPLINE & DISCHARGE	11–13
9	HOURS OF WORK	13-14
10	OVERTIME	14-16
11	CALL BACK & ON-CALL DUTY	16-17
12	PAID HOLIDAYS	17-18
13	VACATION	19-20
14	SICK LEAVE	20-22
15	FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE ACT / PARENTAL LEAVE	22-23
16	PAID FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE	23
17	BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	23-24
18	JURY DUTY	24
19	MILITARY LEAVE	24
<u>20</u>	WORKERS COMPENSATION	25-26
<u>21</u>	LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY	26
22	HEALTH & WELFARE	26-28
23	WAGES	28-29
24	PERSONNEL ACTIONS	29-33
25	TRAINING & TRAVEL	33
26	SAFETY & UNIFORMS	34
27	LAYOFF & RECALL	35-38
<u>28</u>	COMMERCIAL DRIVER'S LICENSE (CDL)	38
<u>29</u>	NO INTERRUPTION OF WORK	39
<u>30</u>	SEPERABILITY	39
<u>31</u>	ENTIRE AGREEMENT	39-40
32	COST SAVINGS COMMITTEE	40
33	GPS IN EMPLOYER VEHICLES	40-41
34	CERTIFICATIONS	41
<u>35</u>	CLASSIFICATION & COMPENSATION POLICY PROVISION	42
36	DURATION	42
	SIGNATURE PAGE	45
	2025 307-W SALARY SCHEDULE	46
	2026 307-W SALARY SCHEDULE	47

ARTICLE 1 - PARTIES, PREAMBLE

1.1

The City of Washougal, a municipal corporation, herein known as the "Employer", does hereby enter into an agreement with Local 307-W of the Washington State Council of County and City Employees of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, herein known as "Union", for the purpose of providing harmonious working relations between the Employer and the employees, promoting efficiency, establishing equitable and peaceful procedures for the resolution of differences, and establishing rates of pay, hours of work, and other terms and conditions of employment.

1.2

Should there be any conflict between this Agreement and Employer rules, regulations, resolutions, or the like, this Agreement shall prevail.

ARTICLE 2- RECOGNITION

2.1

The Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining agent for all full-time and regular part-time employees of the City of Washougal except for elected officials, managers, uniformed employees, temporary employees, and confidential employees with respect to wages, hours, and working conditions as defined in Chapter 41.56 RCW.

2.2

Part-time employees working twenty (20) or more hours per week shall receive pro-rated benefits based upon the ratio of hours worked to those hours worked by a full-time employee. Benefits shall not be provided if the employee is working less than twenty (20) hours per week.

- **A.** Regular full-time employees are defined as working a forty-hour (40) workweek.
- **B.** Regular part-time employees are defined as working twenty (20) or more hours but less than forty (40) hours each work week for the purpose of being benefit-eligible. Employees working less than ninety (90) hours but more than sixty (60) hours per month are union members. Employees working less than sixty (60) hours per month are non-union.
- **C.** Confidential employee is defined as one who is required to develop or represent management position with respect to meeting and conferring or whose duties normally require access to confidential information which contributes significantly to the development of such management position.
- **D.** In general terms a manager is defined as an individual responsible for planning and directing the work of a group of individuals and monitoring their work. While lead workers/supervisors may take on some of this work, managers are additionally responsible for taking corrective action or disciplinary action when necessary.

2.3

Temporary employees, who meet the definition specified in Article 24.5 of this agreement, are presumed to lack an expectation of continued employment and a community of interest with full-time and regular part-time employees. Therefore, they are excluded from the bargaining unit.

2.4

A seasonal employee is an employee who works for a fixed period not to exceed six (6) consecutive months each calendar year, due to seasonal and/or temporary workload needs.

Seasonal employees are not covered by this labor agreement and fall under the provisions of the City of Washougal's Personnel Policies. Seasonal employees will not be offered special training opportunities.

ARTICLE 3 - UNION SECURITY

3.1

The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative in all matters concerning wages, hours, and other conditions of employment for all employees described in Article 1, Recognition.

The Employer shall remain neutral when communicating with employees about Union membership and direct the employee to discuss union membership with a Union staff representative.

The Employer agrees to deduct Union dues from the employees' wages upon receipt of the "Authorization for Representation and Dues Deduction" form and to forward the dues to the Union office in Everett, WA.

The Employer shall provide an electronic copy of the "Authorization for Representation and Dues Deduction" via email to C@everett@council2.com within ten (10) days of the employee executing the document.

3.2

The Employer shall honor the terms and conditions of each employee's authorization for payroll deduction. The Employer shall continue to deduct and remit Union dues and fees to the Union until such time as the Union notifies the Employer that the dues authorization has been properly terminated in compliance with the terms of the payroll deduction authorization executed by the employee.

3.3

In the event of an error in relation to dues/fees deductions or union membership, the parties agree to cooperate in making the appropriate adjustments. The Employer shall promptly notify the Union in writing of any claim, demand, suit, or other form of liability asserted against it relating to its implementation of this Article. The Union shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the Employer and its officers, employees, representatives, and agents from any claim or liability which may be brought by virtue of the Employer's administration of dues/fees deductions and by virtue of any action taken by the Employer in compliance with this Article relating to union membership and payroll deductions. The Employer shall be free to choose and retain defense counsel of its own choosing, provided that the Employer shall obtain the Union's prior written consent as to such selection, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

3.4

Listing of New, Promoted, and Terminated Employees: The Employer agrees to furnish the Union:

- **A.** By the 10th of the following month, a listing of bargaining unit employees hired, promoted, or terminated during the previous month. Such listings shall contain the names of the employees, along with their job classification, work location, department, hours worked, base wage, hire date, mailing address, work phone, personal phone, work email and personal email.
- **B.** By the 1st day of January, April, July, and October of each year, a listing of bargaining unit members, along with their job classification, work location, department, hours worked, base wage, hire date, mailing address, work phone, personal phone, work email, and

personal email.

3.5

P.E.O.P.L.E (Public Employees Organized to Promote Legislative Equality) Committee Deductions: To the extent allowable by law, employees may authorize payroll deductions for the People Committee by submitting the form provided by the Union to payroll. The Employer agrees to provide the Union by the 10th of each month with a listing of employees that are making PEOPLE contributions and amount deducted per employee. The Union will reimburse the Employer for any expense incurred by the Employer in maintaining the People Deduction.

3.6

Union Representation:

- A. Contract Negotiations:
 - The Union's negotiating team shall consist of a chief spokesperson from the Union organization and no more than four (4) employees from the bargaining unit. Employees participating in such negotiations will be allowed to do so without loss of pay if negotiations are scheduled during said employees' regularly scheduled work time.
 - 2. Prior to negotiations, representatives of the Employer's and the Union's negotiating teams will jointly establish and will follow negotiation ground rules.
- **B.** Union Representation Employees shall have the right to Union representation in meetings with their supervisors or other representatives of the Employer which may lead to discipline. The Employer agrees to recognize three (3) Stewards from the bargaining unit.
- **C.** Communication with Bargaining Unit Members:
 - **1.** Internal communications from the Employer to Union will be sent to the membership via email.
 - **2.** The Employer computers may be used for union business involving e-mail or internet connections if they adhere to the Employer's internet policy.
 - **3.** Employer phones may be used for Union business when such use is de minims and incidental, such as arranging a meeting with a fellow shop steward or the Council Representative.
 - **4.** The Union may schedule and use the Council Chambers for their regular monthly meetings. These meetings will generally take place from 12-1pm and Union members will attend on their own time.
- **D.** Union Business Leave for Mutually Agreed Employer/Union Joint Functions Shall be Considered Paid Time: Such functions shall include negotiations and joint Employer/Union committees such as Labor Management Committees, duties as a steward as defined in this agreement, and any other joint Employer/Union business, subject to mutual agreement of the parties.

A Labor Management Committee is established which shall consist of three (3) bargaining unit representatives from the Union and management representatives as determined by the Employer. The Labor Management Committee will hold quarterly meetings during regularly scheduled working hours subject to mutual agreement between the Employer and Union. Union employees participating in such activities will be allowed to do so without loss of pay, as long as such activity occurs during regularly scheduled working hours. Matters to be discussed will be pertinent to maintaining good employer/employee relationships but shall not include grievances or pending legal proceedings. These meetings will include such topics as MOU's, changes to City of Washougal's Personnel Policies that affect the Union employees etc.

- **E.** Union Paid Time for Union Activity: A bargaining unit member selected by the Union to participate in a Union activity may be granted unpaid leave to attend such activity, subject to advance prior employer approval. All expenses and compensation shall be borne by the Union.
- F. Union Business Leave: The Union shall normally be granted two (2) days per year of Union Business Leave for use by officers and stewards from Union Conferences and Conventions. However, with one (1) month prior notice, the Employer will agree to grant two (2) Union officers up to five (5) additional days of Union Business Leave for the purpose of attending a National Convention.
- **G.** Visits by Union Representatives: Representatives of the Union shall have reasonable access to Employer facilities for purposes of conducting Union business. Accredited representatives of the Union shall not disrupt the normal operation of any department.
- **H.** Employer Property: Subject to prior approval by the Employer, the Employer may allow the Union to meet on City-owned property, provided there is no disruption to the work, and subject further to proper advance notice and no scheduling conflict(s).

ARTICLE 4 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

4.1

Except as otherwise expressly and specifically limited by the terms of this Agreement or other addenda to this agreement and/or Memoranda of Agreement, the Employer retains all of its customary, usual, and exclusive rights, decision-making prerogatives, functions, and authority connected with its responsibility to manage the affairs of the City. The Union agrees that the Employer's management rights include the following matter:

- **A.** The right to determine its mission, policies, and to set forth all standards of service offered to the public. This includes the right to plan, direct, and supervise all operations, functions, and policies of the Employer and to institute, from time to time, work rules applicable to bargaining unit employees.
- **B.** To close or eliminate any office, operations or facility, or combination of facilities, or to relocate, reorganize, or combine the work of departments, offices, operations, or facilities for budgetary or operational reasons.
- C. To establish, revise, and implement standards for hiring, classification, promotion, quality of work, safety, materials, equipment, appearance, methods, procedures,

processes, manner of performing work, and fitness for work. This includes the right to make or change the assignment of employees to specific jobs within the bargaining unit in accordance with their job classification or title, and the right to determine schedules of work.

- **D.** To use various alternative workers for rehabilitative, societal, or other purposes including volunteers, offenders, youth programs, interns, senior citizens, welfare recipients, and the disabled. Alternative workers shall be used as a supplement to and not in place of bargaining unit members.
- **E.** To determine the need for additional education courses, training programs, on-thejob training, and cross-training. Such cross-training shall not be used to fill a vacant position.
- **F.** To purchase, assign, and dispose of equipment or supplies including the introduction of all new, improved, or automated methods and/or equipment.
- **G.** To assign vehicles to bargaining unit employees or to restrict, regulate, or rescind such assignments at any time and in any fashion.
- H. To contract or subcontract work as determined by the Employer; provided, that as to work currently covered by the bargaining unit, the Employer agrees to negotiate with the Union the effect of such action on wages and working conditions of employees in the bargaining unit before finalization or implementation of such contracting. The Employer shall provide thirty (30) days' notice to the Union and its representatives and will meet and negotiate the impacts.
- **I.** To determine the need for a reduction or any increase in the workforce and the implementation of any decision with regards thereto.
- **J.** To discipline, suspend, or discharge an employee for just cause and to discipline probationary employees for any lawful reason.
- **K.** To take whatever actions the Employer deems necessary to carry out services in an emergency, if those actions are not deemed unsafe by a reasonable person. An emergency is defined as an unforeseen combination of circumstances or the resulting state that calls for immediate action.

4.2

Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted to detract or circumscribe the trust employed in municipal government, and the rights and obligations owed to the electorate. This Agreement shall be consistent with both Federal and State laws.

ARTICLE 5- UNION-EMPLOYER RELATIONS

5.1

Non-discrimination - The Employer agrees not to discriminate against any employee for his/her membership or activity on behalf of the Union. The Employer and the Union agree that there shall be no discrimination against any employee because of race, creed, political affiliation, sex, age, religion, disability, veteran/military status, or sexual orientation.

5.2

Sexual Harassment - Sexual harassment shall be considered discrimination under this section.

5.3

Safety - The Union and the Employer will cooperate in an endeavor to maintain safe and healthy working conditions and encourage employees to work in a safe manner. Management agrees that no employee shall work or be directed to work in a manner or condition that does not comply with minimum accepted safety practices or standards as established by the Division of Safety, Department of Labor and Industries, State of Washington. It is further agreed that employees shall not be required to work in a condition, location, or assignment which would constitute a hazard, as determined by the Department of Labor and Industries, to the employees' health or well-being.

5.4

Personnel Policies - Changes to the Personnel Policies that affect Union employees will be submitted to the Union for review. The Union will have thirty (30) days to review and bargain the impacts of said changes prior to their adoption. If there is no response within thirty (30) days, the Employer will consider this a waiver by inaction and will implement the change(s).

5.5

Personnel Policies

- **A.** Changes to, or implementation of personnel policies will be submitted to the Union for review and recommendation prior to adoption.
- **B.** The Employer will provide new employees a copy of the Agreement and applicable personnel policies at time of hire.
- **C.** The Employer agrees to furnish each affected employee in the bargaining unit with a copy of all changes to personnel policies within thirty (30) days after they become effective.
- **D.** Any dispute as to the reasonableness of any new personnel policy, or any dispute involving discrimination in the application of a new or existing personnel policy may be resolved through the grievance procedure beginning at Step 3.
- **E.** Except in emergencies, all personnel policies shall be posted on the Human Resources page of the Employer's website. Substantive changes will be reviewed with the Union to bargain impacts prior to implementation.

ARTICLE 6- EVALUATIONS, PERSONNEL FILES

6.1

Each regular employee's job performance shall be evaluated once annually and will be given twenty-four (24) hours' notice of pending evaluation, by qualified and trained supervisory personnel. Lead positions will not perform evaluations; however, lead positions shall be expected to provide input on evaluations of employees under their lead. The supervisor, or non-represented manager, shall review with each employee his/her performance at least once each year. Once completed, the employee will be required to sign the document thereby indicating that the review took place. This signature does not indicate agreement with the contents. This review shall evaluate the ability of the employee to perform assignments and prepare himself/herself for advancement. Such a performance review shall take place within thirty (30) calendar days of the employee's date of hire or promotional anniversary. At the request of the employee being evaluated, a Union Steward shall be allowed to be present. Unsatisfactory performance reviews will not result in a step increase has been denied.

6.2

Written comments or objections to any of the contents of the annual performance review by the employee may be attached to the review for future reference within fifteen (15) working days of the date of review with the employee. If requested, the employee will be provided with a copy of his/her review. The Employer assumes no responsibility for the disclosure of confidential information from the release of such requested copies and will require the employee's signature on a form indicating this is understood.

6.3

The Employer may maintain a personnel file on each employee. Such file shall be considered confidential and shall contain items such as original employment application and resume, educational records, references, information required as a condition of employment, status sheets and other information pertinent to the employee's employment with the Employer.

6.4

After giving at least twenty-four (24) hours advance notice, an employee shall have the right to inspect all contents of their personnel file. If the employee desires, he/she may fill out an inventory sheet listing all documents in his/her file. Upon request, a single copy of any document(s) shall be provided to the employee. An employee requesting that their personnel files or portions thereof be released to an individual or agency other than themselves must provide written authorization indicating the name of the party to which the information is to be released.

6.5

The Union and Employer agree that any disciplinary material over sixteen (16) months old, except for evaluations, shall be removed from the personnel file at the request of the employee. If the employee's file contains more than one (1) written reprimand or where there is one (1) letter imposing discipline which is more severe than a written reprimand on file, none of the letters may be removed until the most recent letter is more than three (3) years old. At that time, it and all previous disciplinary letters will be removed from the employee's personnel file upon request. For the purpose of this subsection, "letter" includes all attachments.

6.6

An employee who disagrees with any disciplinary material in his/her file may seek redress through the grievance procedure. Adverse materials shall not be placed in the personnel file without the knowledge of the employee and shall be signed by the employee prior to placement. The employee's signature shall only be indicative of receiving a copy of said document and shall not indicate agreement with the contents. If the employee refuses to sign such a document, this fact shall be noted, and the document placed in the personnel file. Employees shall have the right to attach a rebuttal to adverse materials that have been placed in the employee's personnel file, within fifteen (15) working days of the material being presented to the employee.

ARTICLE 7-GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

7.1

An employee, group of employees, or the Union may file a grievance or appeal to the Civil

Service Commission (if applicable) with respect to a claim or dispute arising from the interpretation, meaning or application of the provisions of this Agreement. Any claim or dispute can only be submitted to the Civil Service Commission (if applicable) or the grievance procedure but not both. The request for a Civil Service hearing must be submitted in accordance with Civil Service Rules.

The Employer and the Union agree that every effort should be made to resolve grievances at the lowest possible level. The grievant and/or the Union and the appropriate Employer representative shall meet, if necessary, to attempt to resolve the grievance at any step.

A grievance must be filed in writing within ten (10) working days of the discovery of the occurrence of the incident producing the violation, dispute, or grievance. When computing deadlines under this Article, the day which triggers the deadline (contract violation, receipt of grievance, etc.) shall not be included. "Working days" means Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. The time limits prescribed herein may be waived or extended by mutual agreement, in writing, by the aggrieved employee, or the Union in a class grievance, and the appropriate Employe representative at each step.

7.2 GRIEVANCE STEPS

7.2.1

STEP ONE: Either an employee or his/her Union Steward may institute a grievance by notifying the immediate supervisor within ten (10) working days of the discovery of the occurrence that he/she and/or the Union wish to meet on an informal basis for the purpose of discussing and attempting to settle the matter.

7.2.2

STEP TWO: If the grievance is not settled at step one, the Union shall present the grievance in writing at step 2, within ten (10) working days after the informal meeting, to the Department Head who shall meet with the Union and the Grievant to review the grievance within ten (10) working days of receiving the grievance. The grievance should state the date and time that gave rise to the grievance, the step the grievance is at in the grievance process, a short statement of facts, the sections of the contract violated and the proposed remedy. The Department Head shall submit a response to the Union and the grievant within ten (10) working days from the date of the meeting.

7.2.3

STEP THREE: If the grievance is not settled at Step 2 it shall be presented by the Union to the City Manager within ten (10) working days of the Department Head's response. The City Manager shall meet with the Union and the Grievant within ten (10) working days to review the grievance and shall respond to the Union within ten (10) working days from the date of the meeting.

7.2.4

STEP FOUR: If the Union is not satisfied with the response at Step Three, it may, within ten (10) working days of receiving that response, initiate the arbitration process by written notice to the City Manager. The parties shall attempt to agree on an arbitrator within fifteen (15) working days of the City Manager's receipt of the arbitration notice. If the parties cannot agree on the selection of an arbitrator, they may jointly request the American Arbitration Association or other arbitration service to provide a list of seven (7) arbitrators from which the parties may select one person. The representatives of the Employer and the employee shall alternately eliminate the name

of one person on the list until only one remains, with the parties tossing a coin to determine who shall strike the first name. The person whose name was not eliminated shall be selected as the arbitrator.

In conducting the hearing, the Arbitrator has the power to administer oaths, issue subpoenas, receive relevant evidence, compile the production of books and papers relevant to the hearing, and question witnesses.

The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties to the grievance provided the decision does not involve action by the employer which is beyond its jurisdiction. Each party hereto will pay the expense of its own representatives. The arbitrator's expenses shall be borne by the losing party. If either party desires a verbatim transcript of the proceedings, it shall pay the costs of the court reporter and of the arbitrator's copy of the transcript. Should both parties desire a copy of the transcript, they shall share the costs of the court reporter and of the arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding.

7.3

Any and all time limits under this grievance procedure may be waived by mutual written agreement of the parties. No grievant, employee, or witness for a grievant shall be coerced or discriminated against in any way for his/her use of, or participation in, this procedure.

7.4

Any step in the grievance procedure may be eliminated by written mutual consent. Failure on the part of the Employer to respond within the time limit at any Step shall be construed as a negative answer, which shall allow the processing of the grievance at the next appropriate step. Failure on the part of the grievant(s) or the Union to proceed to the next Step within the prescribed time limit shall constitute abandonment of the grievance.

7.5

As an alternative or supplement to the grievance procedure or for such other purposes as the Employer and Union may mutually determine, the parties may invoke a mediation process to resolve grievances or other issues between them as provided herein. A decision to utilize a mediator shall be voluntary by both the Employer and the Unio and subject to:

- A. The mediator shall be a mutually acceptable PERC staff representative.
- **B.** If the Employer and the Union agree to enter mediation, the mediator shall attempt to assist the parties in achieving a voluntary resolution. The mediator will not have the authority to force either party to accept a particular resolution.
- **C.** Settlement discussions by the parties during mediation may not be introduced during any subsequent arbitration or PERC proceedings, nor may the comments by the mediator be referenced.

ARTICLE 8 - CONDUCT, DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

8.1

It shall be the responsibility of all employees to represent the Employer to the public in a courteous and efficient manner.

8.2

The Employer will always attempt to operate its business in the most efficient, economical, and orderly manner consistent with good management practices. All employees shall conduct themselves in a manner that will be consistent with the collective bargaining agreement. Disciplinary action is not primarily intended to be punitive but rather to maintain the efficiency of day-to-day operations and in keeping with sound principles of human relations in the City of Washougal's service.

8.3

All employees may be subject to disciplinary action for failing to comply with the rules of conduct as outlined in the City of Washougal's Personnel Policies (Chapter 17) or those of the specific department for which he/she works as acknowledged by receipt of such policies.

8.4

When a Department Head becomes aware of a possible discipline issue, the Union leadership will be notified within ten (10) business days of the specific steps that will be taken.

8.5

The degree of discipline administered must depend on the severity of the infraction and must be in accordance with the collective bargaining agreement. It is the responsibility of the supervisor to evaluate thoroughly the circumstances and facts as objectively as possible. Employees shall be afforded all Constitutional rights including those established in the Weingarten and Loudermill cases. The employee will be informed of their right to have a union representative present and will be afforded the opportunity to contact their union representative prior to any disciplinary investigation or interview (including verbal warning) unless such presence is freely waived by the employee. This does not include coaching and counseling sessions.

8.6

Disciplinary action or measures shall be taken only for just cause and will include the following steps, which may occur in the order listed below, unless the actions of the employee warrant more severe measures:

8.6.1. VERBAL WARNING (Non-Grieveable)

- A. This type of discipline is meant to be corrective and should be applied for infractions of a relatively minor degree. Managers should always inform the employee that he or she is administering a verbal warning, and that the employee is being given an opportunity to correct the condition. If the condition is not corrected, the person will be subject to more severe disciplinary measures.
- **B.** A notation that a verbal warning was given should be made but will not be placed in the employee's personnel file. Any written documentation of a verbal warning will be provided to the employee.
- **C.** If the Employer has reason to counsel or reprimand an employee, it shall be done privately.

8.6.2. WRITTEN WARNING (Grieveable)

A. This notice will be issued by the manager in the event the employee continues to disregard a verbal warning, or if the infraction is severe enough to warrant a written record in the employee's personnel file.

- **B.** The manager will set forth in the warning notice the nature of the infraction in detail and will sign the notice. The manager will discuss the warning notice with the employee, to be certain that the employee understands the reasons for the disciplinary action.
- **C.** A copy of the warning notice is to be handed to the employee at the time of the discussion of the discipline. The original copy is to be placed in the employee's personnel file, must be signed by the employee, and a copy shall be sent to the Union President.
- **D.** Written warnings may be grieved up to step three but not arbitration unless and until such time as the written warning is relied upon to support subsequent discipline.

8.6.3 SUSPENSION (Grieveable)

- A. This form of discipline is administered as a result of a severe infraction of rules, standards, or for excessive performance or behavior violations after the employee has received a written warning and has made no effort to improve performance. This is the most severe form of discipline given by a manager short of termination. It should be applied only after thorough evaluation by the Department Head, Human Resources, or City Manager.
- **B.** The manager shall set forth all facts leading to the disciplinary suspension, and the duration of the suspension, on a disciplinary action form. He/she shall then inform the employee in writing of the pending disciplinary action, making certain that the employee is fully aware of the reason for such action and allowing the employee an opportunity to respond, prior to administering the discipline. The original copy of the disciplinary action form, with the signature of the employee, is to be placed in the employee's personnel file with a copy given to the employee and to the Union President.
- **C.** When the employee returns from a period of disciplinary suspension, the manager should make certain that the employee gets back to the job with as little injury to his or her self-respect as possible.

8.6.4. DISCHARGE (Grieveable)

If termination is contemplated, it is the responsibility of the Employer to thoroughly evaluate and investigate the facts, which shall include holding a pre-termination hearing. The Employer shall give the Union twenty-four (24) hours' notice of a pre-termination hearing. Prior to the pre-termination hearing, the Employer shall inform the employee and the Union representative in writing of the charges, the relevant facts, and the contemplated remedy. At the pre-termination hearing, the employee and/or Union representative shall be allowed to present the employee's side of the story, and to add relevant facts and describe any mitigating circumstances.

8.6.5. ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE

If an employee is placed on administrative leave prior to or during an investigation, they shall be in paid status pending the outcome of the investigation and/or disciplinary action. The Employer shall provide notice to the Union prior to placing an employee on paid administrative leave.

ARTICLE 9 - HOURS OF WORK

9.1.

Work Schedules - Written work schedules showing business days (Monday-Friday, with the exclusions of holidays) and hours of work will be made accessible to employees. Management may change work schedules with ten (10) business days' notice to affected employees and with less notice in the following circumstances:

- A. Such notice is voluntarily waived by the employee(s): or
- **B.** For the duration of an emergency. Emergencies include but are not limited to natural events or unexpected circumstances which necessitate the Employer to change schedules on short notice to address essential operational or service needs on an immediate basis.
- **C.** If the City Manager advises employees not to report to work or to leave early due to an emergency as defined above. Any portion of the shift for that working day will be considered paid time off and will not be charged to vacation or floating holiday leave.

9.2

Hours of work - Employees may be scheduled to work five (5) eight (8) hour days; or four (4) ten- (10) hour days; or 9-80s. All schedules, excluding five (5) eight (8) hour days, Monday through Friday, are considered an alternative schedule. Employees working five (5) eight (8) hour days a week will be scheduled to work five (5) consecutive days with two (2) consecutive days off. Employees working four (4) ten (10) hour days a week may be scheduled to work four (4) consecutive days or may be assigned to a split work week but will be scheduled with two (2) consecutive and one (1) non-consecutive day off.

Employees working less than forty (40) hours per week will be scheduled to work no more than five (5) days a week, and at least two (2) of their days off must be consecutive.

Employees will not be required to use a time clock.

9.3

Flexible Scheduling - An employee may work more or fewer hours than scheduled on one (1) day in a FLSA work week and make up for those hours by working an equivalent number of additional or fewer hours on another day or days within the same FLSA work week. Such requests are subject to mutual agreement by the Employer and the employee and shall not result in any overtime pay or compensatory time.

Workweek defined: A workweek is a period of one hundred sixty-eight (168) hours during seven (7) consecutive twenty-four (24)-hour periods. Each workweek shall begin on Monday at 12:01am and end on the following Sunday at 12:00am.

9.4

Meal Periods (Entitlement to a meal period)- The work schedules of employees working more than six (6) hours in a workday will include a meal period. An employee who has worked eight (8) or more hours in a workday and who works two (2) hours beyond his or her regular quitting time is entitled to a second meal period. Meal periods are unpaid time.

Employees will be scheduled for a thirty (30) minute meal period unless they request, and the Employer approves a one (1) hour meal period. The meal period for employees working

eight (8) or more hours will be scheduled in the middle of the workday whenever practicable. When a one (1) hour meal period is requested and approved, management will adjust the employee's starting and/or quitting time.

9.5

Clean Up Time - Employees occupying labor, trades, or craft positions, or whenever it is essential for other employees to clean up or change clothes before being presentable upon leaving work, shall be granted not more than fifteen (15) minutes personal clean-up time prior to the end of each shift. The Employer shall provide the required facilities for the employee's clean-up time. Neither party to this Agreement shall construe "clean-up time" to mean quitearly time or leave-early time.

9.6

Breaks - All employees are entitled to one twenty (20) minute break (including transit time) in the morning and one twenty (20) minute break (including transit time) in the afternoon. Breaks for office employees should be taken in designated areas, when possible. Field employees should take their breaks near the job site for no more than twenty (20) minutes. Abuse of the break may be subject to disciplinary action.

9.7

Time Charging Provisions Pertaining to Time Worked (Rounding Rule)- Time charged for compensation for time worked shall be subject to rounding to the nearest one-quarter (1/4) of an hour. For example, an employee who works less than eight (8) minutes shall not be compensated. An employee who works eight (8) to fifteen (15) minutes over shall be compensated for one-quarter (1/4) of an hour.

ARTICLE 10 - OVERTIME

10.1

Overtime shall be compensated only upon approval of the manager for each hour worked beyond the normal working day or normal work week in pay or in compensatory time off, at the employee's choice. An employee who is specifically authorized or required by his or her manager to work shall receive overtime pay to the nearest half (1/2) hour. Required meetings that result in overtime shall be paid in the usual manner for overtime or compensatory time. Compensatory time may be accrued up to the maximum accrual of eighty (80) hours. New employees shall not be allowed to accrue compensatory time during their probationary period.

10.2

Employees on non-standard schedules shall be compensated at the overtime rate for all hours worked beyond those on a regularly scheduled day or beyond forty (40) hours in a week. If a "regularly scheduled day" is for a duration of less than eight (8) hours, then the overtime rate shall not apply until eight (8) hours have been worked in that day, or forty hours of work have been exceeded for the week.

10.3

Time and One-Half- Employees will be compensated at the rate of one and one-half (1 ½) times their normal hourly rate of pay for additional time worked as follows:

A. More than eight (8) hours in any workday for a five-day, forty-hour-a-week employee; or

- **B.** More than nine (9) hours in any workday, or eight (8) hours in the eight (8) hour day of the schedule, for a 9-80 work schedule
- **C.** More than ten (10) hours in any workday for a four-day, forty-hour-a-week employee; or
- D. More than forty (40) hours in any FLSA work week.

10.4

Double Time – All work performed on a full-time employee's scheduled last day of rest will be paid at the rate of two (2) times the employee's regular rate of pay, provided that an employee who has refused to work a full shift on the employee's first scheduled day of rest will be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1 $\frac{1}{2}$) times his or her normal rate for the last day of rest.

Part-time employees who work more than forty-eight (48) hours in an employee's FLSA work week shall be compensated at the rate of two (2) times the employee's regular rate of pay for all hours in excess of forty- eight (48) hours.

10.5

Equal Distribution of Overtime Work – Overtime work shall be distributed as equally as practicable among qualified employees working within the same job classification within a division as outlined in 13.5.1 for divisional specific overtime. Divisional specific overtime is defined as overtime which is either planned or has an on-call list associated. Employees with the most seniority in their division will be offered the opportunities first, after which time the overtime opportunity shall be offered department-wide to employees with the most seniority. Division in this section, due to the familiar nature of work and pooling of employee resources is defined as:

- A. Water/Wastewater
- B. Street/Stormwater
- C. Parks/Facilities/Cemetery
- D. Fleet

If additional employees are needed, the Employer will assign overtime work as needed based on the least seniority by department.

10.5.1

"Emergency Maintenance." For overtime required to perform emergency maintenance, employees with the most seniority in their division will be offered the opportunities first, after which time the overtime opportunity shall be offered department-wide to employees with the most seniority. If additional employees are needed, the Employer will assign overtime work as needed based on the least seniority by department.

10.5.2

"City-wide Special Events." For overtime related to annual pre-planned City-wide

Special Events, employees with the most seniority department-wide in Public Works who voluntarily sign up for the event shall be assigned to work. Posting of the overtime opportunity for voluntary sign-ups for these events shall be made no less than 30 calendar days in advance in a Union approved location and Union-wide notification shall be made of the overtime opportunity. These events include The Spring Event in the Parks, Pumpkin Harvest Festival, Lighted Christmas Parade and other significant City-wide events that might be scheduled by the Employer. The Employer will be responsible for posting the overtime opportunity 30 days prior to the scheduled event. The voluntary sign-up period shall close no less than 10 working days prior to the event. If additional employees are needed, the Employer will assign overtime work as needed based on the least seniority and rank department-wide in Public Works.

ARTICLE 11 - CALL BACK AND ON-CALL DUTY

11.1

Minimum call back time for overtime compensation shall be two (2) hours at the applicable overtime rate for each call back in addition to overtime pay for actual hours worked. If an employee receives an additional call(s) within 30 minutes of clocking out from the previous call back no additional call back shall be made. Call back shall mean that the employee was unaware of the work assignment at the end of the previous shift or call back, or prior to the start of a shift. This call back compensation can be taken in the form of overtime pay or compensatory time.

11.2

Off Duty Telephone/Computer Work at Home: An employee directed by their supervisor to perform work from an offsite location outside of their regular scheduled hours will receive pay in fifteen (15) minute increments at the applicable rate of pay.

11.3

Call back pay for an employee's second day off for those working an alternate schedule or for Sunday for those working a Monday through Friday schedule and holidays will be at the rate of double the employee's regular rate of pay. Call backs will be paid at the appropriate overtime rate for actual hours worked.

11.4

All qualified employees in a division shall have an opportunity to sign up for on-call duty if management deems it necessary for a division to have on-call. All on-call time shall be offered on a seniority basis, starting with the most senior qualified person. The Department Head, or his/her designee, shall prepare and post an on-call schedule for affected employees to be posted at least one month in advance of the effective date of the schedule. The on-call schedule shall be made available to all divisions. If applicable, the employees may trade assigned on-call shifts with other employees that are qualified to do so with prior notification to the Department Head, or designee. Such trades shall not incur any additional cost to the Employer.

11.5

Carrying Employer-provided communication devices will be required for employees on-call.

11.6

On-Call Duty Assignment – Employees who are on-call must be fit for duty and respond to the assigned duty station in approximately forty (40) minutes. Employees who are assigned to on-call status shall receive an allowance as follows:

- A. Two (2) hours of the employee's hourly wage per day for the weekend, which shall include the hours between the end of the employee's normal working day on Friday and the beginning of the normal working day on Monday. For the Water and Wastewater Divisions compensation shall be, one (1) hour of the employee's hourly wage per day for the weekend will be paid for coming in and doing the applicable work outlined by the Division's Standard Operating Procedure for On-Call employees. For General Services and Stormwater Divisions, time be paid on an "as-worked" basis, not to exceed two and one-half (2.5) hours per day for watering flowers and emptying garbage during peak summer season (typically mid-May end of September).
- **B.** One (1) hour of the employees' hourly wage per evening, which shall include the hours between the end of the employee's normal working day and the beginning of the following normal working day, Monday through Thursday of each week.
- **C.** Two and one-half (2.5) hours per holiday, which shall include the hours between the end of the employee's normal working day, which precedes the holiday and the beginning of the normal working day following said holiday.
- **D.** For employees working alternative schedules (not Monday through Friday), the above payments will be adjusted for the correct days of the week accordingly.

11.7

The Employer will attempt to meet its on-call requirements on a voluntary basis among the employees. In the event there are insufficient volunteers to meet the requirements, the employer may assign the necessary employees starting with the least senior, qualified employee.

ARTICLE 12 - PAID HOLIDAYS

12.1

Legal holidays to be observed by the employees are:

- A. New Year's Day
- **B.** Martin Luther King's Birthday
- C. Presidents' Day
- **D.** Memorial Day
- E. Juneteenth Day
- **F.** Independence Day
- G. Labor Day
- H. Veterans' Day
- I. Thanksgiving Day
- J. Day after Thanksgiving
- K. Christmas Eve
- L. Christmas Day

12.2

In addition to the above legal holidays, the employees are entitled to take three (3) floating holidays. Floating holidays do not carry over from one calendar year to the next. Floating holidays shall be pro-rated for new employees within the calendar year based on their date

of hire and they shall be allowed to use those leave hours in their probationary period.

12.3

A holiday that falls on Saturday shall be observed on the proceeding Friday. A holiday that falls on Sunday shall be observed on the following Monday.

12.3.1

When Christmas Day falls on a Saturday, Christmas Eve will be observed on the preceding Thursday and Christmas Day on the preceding Friday.

12.3.2

When Christmas Eve falls on a Saturday and Christmas Day on a Sunday, Christmas Eve will be observed on the preceding Friday and Christmas Day on the following Monday.

12.3.3

When Christmas Eve falls on a Sunday and Christmas Day on a Monday, Christmas Eve will be recognized on the following Monday and Christmas Day on the following Tuesday.

12.4

Holidays shall be in increments of eight (8) hours for regular full-time employees and prorated for regular part-time employees. During the Thanksgiving and Christmas holiday weeks, employees working an alternate work schedule will revert to an eight (8) hour workday schedule. During other observed holiday weeks, employees may choose to revert to the eight (8) hour daily schedule during the holiday week, or maintain their alternate work schedule and receive full pay for the period by charging additional leave: e.g., 4-10 employee can use eight (8) hours of regular holiday time and two (2) hours of annual leave or vacation time on the holiday and work three (3) ten (10) hour days. If the date of observed holiday falls on employee's alternative day off, the employee shall receive a following day off, as approved by the Supervisor.

12.5

Any of the above holidays that are specified State legal holidays and are also Federal legal holidays but observed on different dates shall be recognized as a paid legal holiday on the date observed by the State.

12.6

An employee who is required by his or her department head to work on a recognized holiday shall be paid two times his or her hourly salary for the time worked on such holidays, or shall be granted compensatory time off, at the same rate, at the employee's choice.

12.7

Holidays which occur during vacation or sick leave shall not be charged against such leave.

ARTICLE 13-VACATION

13.1

Accrual - Full-time employees shall earn vacation time monthly based upon the following schedule:

Date of Hire through 3 years of service	8 hours
4 through 6 years of service	10 hours
7 through 9 years of service	12 hours

10 through 14 years of service	14 hours
15 through 19 years of service	16 hours
20+ years of service	18 hours

Regular part-time employees shall accrue vacation time on a pro-rata basis on their regularly scheduled hours of work and their years of service.

13.1.

Probationary Employees - Employees shall not be allowed to use vacation leave during their probationary period. Exceptions may be granted by the Department Head. No compensation shall be paid for accrued vacation leave if the employee fails to pass probation.

13.2.

Accrual Parameters - Employees are highly encouraged to take a minimum of a one- week block of vacation each year. All eligible employees may accrue a maximum of three hundred sixty (360) hours of vacation. Vacation shall be granted in increments of not less than one-half (1/2) hour. The time charged shall be on an hour-for-hour basis. Upon termination of employment, employees who have passed probation shall be paid for unused accumulated vacation time earned within the above-stated limitations.

13.3.

Scheduling - Each year, prior to or on March 1, the Department Head or his/her designee shall provide to the applicable division employees with a calendar indicating the maximum number of employees within the division that may be authorized to be on vacation during each week of the following twelve (12) month period.

13.5

For the purpose of this article, division shall be defined as:

- A. Animal Control
- B. Code Compliance
- C. Community Development
- D. Finance
- E. Fleet
- **F.** Parks, Facilities, Cemetery
- G. Police
- H. Stormwater
- I. Streets
- J. Wastewater
- K. Water

13.5.1

During the month of March, employees may sign up for vacation to be taken during the next twelve months, beginning April 1. Employees shall make their selections in order of division seniority. In case of conflict, the most senior employee in the division shall be given the first choice of leave time. This seniority privilege shall exist only for applications made during the March sign-up period and shall not be more than two weeks' continuous leave, unless otherwise agreed to.

After April 1, employees shall have requests for vacation considered on a first-come, firstserved basis. The Department Head or designee shall approve or deny requests as soon as possible in writing, and at most within five (5) working days. An employee may negotiate with the Department Head or designee to change scheduled vacation days. Such a change must not interfere with the scheduled department activities and shall not result in a loss of vacation to any previously scheduled junior employee. Only in cases of bona fide emergency shall any approved vacation leave be rescinded. Vacation requests shall not be denied for arbitrary or capricious reasons.

13.6

Vacation Buyback - Employees are eligible for a vacation "buyback" of accrued vacation time. The employee may apply to the City Manager to "buyback" the vacation time during the month of October. Up to eighty (80) hours may be requested for "buyback." The employee must maintain a minimum of eighty 80 hours of vacation at the time of the buyback request. The buyback will occur during the last November pay cycle.

ARTICLE 14 - SICK LEAVE

14.1

Employees shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours of leave for each month of continuous full-time service. Regular part-time employees shall accrue sick leave on a prorated basis. At the end of each calendar year unused sick leave accrual balances of 130 days (1040 hours) or less will carry over to the following year.

14.2

Definition and Allowable Use - Sick leave is a leave of absence with pay which may be used by the employee for the following covered conditions:

- A. Personal illness or physical disability (including maternity disability);
- **B.** Quarantine by a physician;
- **C.** For keeping medical, dental, or optical appointments;
- D. To care for a "child" (as defined as child, legal ward, or a child of a person standing in loco parentis) of the employee with a health condition requiring treatment or supervision;
- **E.** To care for a spouse, parent, parent-in-law, or grandparent of the employee who has a serious health condition or emergency condition;
- **F.** To care for other family members who reside permanently in the employee's immediate household who have a serious health condition or emergency condition; and
- **G.** Circumstances covered by the FMLA, WAFLA or Washington State Family Care rules.

Sick leave for the care of other individuals with "family-like" relationships may be considered by the Employer on a case-by-case non-precedent basis.

"Serious health condition" shall mean an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves any period of incapacity or treatment connected with inpatient care (i.e. an overnight stay) in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility, and any period of incapacity or subsequent treatment or recovery in connection with such inpatient care, or that involves continuing treatment by or under the supervision of a health care provider or a provider of health care services and which includes any period of incapacity (i.e.

inability to work, attend school, or perform other regular daily activities).

14.3

Abuse of sick leave may be cause for disciplinary action. An employee requesting sick leave must inform his/her immediate supervisor or Department Head at least one (1) hour before (sooner if possible) the employee is scheduled to begin work if the leave is unplanned, and if possible, ten (10) days in advance if the leave is scheduled. Advance notice is essential in cases where replacement employees' ore rescheduling is necessary as a result of planned absence. An employee may be required to provide verification for absences that exceed three (3) days. Employees taking foreseen and unforeseen sick leave should consult Human Resources.

14.4

Employees may not take sick leave prior to earning sick leave. Earned vacation, annual leave, or compensatory time may be used if the sick leave balance has been exhausted. The use of vacation, or annual leave should be scheduled except in unusual or extenuating circumstances. If sick leave and all other leave balances are exhausted, the employee must take time off as unpaid according to Authorized Leave of Absence without Pay as described in the City of Washougal's Personnel Policies. If such an absence has not received prior approval to be absent as per City Policies, an employee may be subject to disciplinary action.

14.5

Occupationally Related Conditions - Use of sick leave for occupationally related conditions is limited to the provisions of Article 19 - Worker's Compensation.

14.6

Use of Sick Leave During Leave - An employee on vacation leave and who becomes ill prior to or during that leave may not change his/her vacation leave to sick leave unless they present reasonable evidence of a bona fide illness or injury upon returning to work.

14.7

Long Term Disability- Regular full-time bargaining unit employees will be covered by an Employer paid group long-term disability insurance policy.

14.8

Sick Leave Cash Out- Employees hired on or before December 31, 2013, with five (5) or more years of service will be paid twenty-five percent (25%) for any unused sick leave balance upon leaving City of Washougal's employment. Those employees hired after December 31, 2013, will not be eligible for the twenty-five percent (25%) payout of unused sick leave.

14.9

Time Charging for Sick Leave - Sick leave shall be charged in fifteen (15) minute increments for an hour for hour basis.

14.10

Shared Sick Leave-Sick leave may be shared in accordance with City of Washougal's Personnel Policies.

14.11

Employees affected by this article who have accrued in excess of sixty (60) days or four hundred and eighty (480 hours) of sick leave, may annually in January trade four (4) hours of sick leave for one (1) hour of vacation in excess of the four hundred and eighty (480) hours of sick leave. The employee must maintain a minimum of four hundred and eighty (480) hours of sick leave at the

ARTICLE 15- FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT / PARENTAL LEAVE

15.1 Family and Medical Leave

15.1.1

Employees wishing to take Family Medical Leave must apply for Family Medical Leave and may be required to provide a physician's certification which documents the need for and the duration of leave (forms to be provided by the Employer). When possible, thirty (30) days advance notice is required. The Employer may request an objective medical examination to verify the need for leave at the Employer's expense. The employee may also take Family Medical Leave to care for a child under eighteen (18) (or eighteen (18) years or older if the child is incapable of self-care due to a mental or physical disability) suffering from a serious illness or health condition, a spouse or parent suffering from a serious illness or heath condition, or to take parental leave.

15.1.2

Employees will use all accumulated leave (sick, vacation, personal holiday) for a serious, disabling illness or health condition (including disability associated with pregnancy and childbirth) which renders the employee unable to work or for the care of immediate family members as provided under the law. However, if an employee does not have sufficient leave, the employee will be granted unpaid leave for recovery. The employee's leave will not extend beyond the longer of the accumulated leave or twelve (12) weeks in a rolling 12-month period as measured forward from the beginning of the first day of FMLA qualified leave. In extenuating circumstances, the employee may seek additional leave through their immediate supervisor.

15.1.3

During the period an employee is on Family Medical Leave, the Employer will continue its contributions to the employee's medical, dental, vision, long-term disability, and life insurance benefits for a period of twelve (12) weeks or if the employee remains in a paid status {whichever is longer}. The employee will be required to continue to pay their contributions for medical insurance benefits through payroll deductions and/or self-payment. If, after twelve (12) weeks, the employee is in an unpaid status, the employee is responsible for the full cost of insurance coverage as allowed by law.

15.1.4

Employees taking Family Medical Leave will be reinstated to their former position or an equivalent position and pay upon their return to work. (Key employees, as defined by the Department of Labor, are exempt from this provision). The Employer retains the right to recover insurance premium costs from the employee if the employee does not return to work at the end of the Family Medical Leave as allowed by law.

15.1.5

Employees shall have the option to use the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act or the Washington State Family Leave Act.

15.2

Parental Leave - Employees may take a leave of absence or vacation not to exceed one year for the purpose of parental leave. A leave of absence is taken without any pay or fringe benefits, but the employee shall be allowed to participate in the Employer's insurance program by paying their own premium. Vacation may also be used to the extent of accrual. Parental Leave is subject to

ARTICLE 16 - PAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

16.1

Eligible employees are covered by Washington's Family and Medical Leave program, RCW 50A.04. Eligibility for leave and benefits, which begins January 1, 2020, is established by Washington Law and is therefore independent of this agreement. Premiums for benefits are established by law and for the period ending December 31, 2020, will total four-tenths of one percent (.4%) of employees' wages (unless otherwise limited by action of the State). Employees will pay through payroll deduction the full cost of the premiums associated with the family leave benefits and forty-five percent (45%) of the cost of the premiums associated with the medical leave benefits, as determined under RCW 50A.04.115. The Employer will pay the remaining premium amounts. The net contribution for the employee will be sixty-three percent (63%) of the zero-point four percent (0.4%) and the Employer will pay the remaining thirty-seven percent (37%). Following finalization of regulations implementing RCW 50A.04, either party may reopen this Agreement for the purpose of bargaining over issues related to the interrelation between leaves available under this Agreement and benefits provided by statute.

ARTICLE 17 - BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

17.1

An employee shall be granted a maximum of twenty-four (24) hours with pay for bereavement leave in case of death in an employee's immediate family or any other member of the immediate household. In the case of one-way travel of two hundred and fifty (250) miles or more, the employee will be granted an additional sixteen (16) hours of bereavement leave.

Immediate family is defined as: The spouse, parents, children, brother or sister, grandparents, grandchildren, that includes the in-law or step equivalent, legal guardian, or any relative living in the Employee's household. Leave may be extended at the discretion of the Employer without pay. It is understood that this policy extends to similar members of a domestic partner's family as detailed above.

17.2

Bereavement leave shall not be charged to any leave banks except in the cases approved by the Employer when the bereavement leave exceeds twenty-four (24) hours or forty (40) hours when extensive travel is involved. Upon approval of the Employer, bereavement leave in excess of twenty-four (24) hours or forty (40) hours when extensive travel is involved may be charged to accrued vacation, floating holiday, or compensatory time balances. Bereavement leave in excess of twenty-four (24) or forty (40) hours when extensive travel is involved hours not charged to paid time may be counted as leave without pay. Employees may be excused by the Employer to attend the funeral of deceased co-workers as leave with pay.

ARTICLE 18 - JURY DUTY

When on jury duty or while appearing as a legally required witness, an employee will receive full pay from the Employer, but the Employer shall deduct an amount equal to the jury fees actually received by the employee excluding mileage and meal allowances. It shall be the responsibility of the employee to provide documentation as to the amount of mileage and/or meal allowances.

ARTICLE 19 - MILITARY LEAVE

19.1

The employer abides by the provisions of the laws of the State of Washington, RCW 38.40.060 and the Federal USERRA laws, which stipulate that employees who are members of the National Guard or Federal Reserve Military Units are entitled to be absent from their duties for a period of up to twenty one (21) working days with pay during each military calendar year (October 1 through September 30) while engaged in the performance of ordered military duty and while going to or from such duty.

19.2

Employees who are called to or volunteer for service with the Armed Forces of the United States or the Washington National Guard shall be entitled to be considered for reinstatement in accordance with the provision of the State Law (RCW 73.16).

19.3

An employee promoted to fill a vacancy created by a person serving in the Armed Forces shall hold such a position subject to the return of the veteran. The employee affected by the return shall be placed in as nearly equal vacant position as may exist, or if no such position exists, may be subject to lay off.

19.4

A new employee hired to fill a vacancy created by a person serving in the Armed Forces shall hold such position subject to the return of the veteran. The employee affected by the return shall be placed in as nearly equal to a vacant position as may exist, or if no such position exists, may be subject to lay off.

19.5

During periods of military conflict, per RCW 49.77.03 an employee who is married to a military member of the US armed forces, National Guard or reserves will be granted up to fifteen (15) days of unpaid leave before their spouse is deployed or while their spouse is on leave from deployment. Employees are eligible for this leave per deployment. The spouse must provide the employer with a copy of the member's orders.

ARTICLE 20 - WORKERS' COMPENSATION

20.1

Coverage - All members of the bargaining unit will be provided with coverage as required by State Worker's Compensation.

20.2

Seniority:

- A. The period that an employee is off the job and unable to work by reason of a disability compensable under the Workers' Compensation Law shall not interrupt his or her continued period of employment with reference to accrual of seniority except as provided in Article 21 Leave of Absence Without Pay.
- **B.** If an employee is transferred to another classification because of a compensable injury, his or her seniority shall be governed in accordance with Seniority and Layoff. In such an event the employee's status shall be governed exclusively by applicable state statutes related to re-employment and non-discrimination.

C. If an injured employee has been released by his or her attending

physician to return to the job at injury, he or she will be reinstated to that position; provided that such reinstatement shall not violate the seniority rights, as contained elsewhere in this Agreement, of any other employee.

20.3

Probationary Employees - If an employee sustains an injury during his or her probationary period, the probationary period may be extended by written agreement of the Union, the employee, and the Employer.

20.4

Denied Claims:

- **A.** If a Workers' Compensation claim is denied, the employee's absence from work due to illness or injury shall, to the extent not compensated for as Workers' Compensation time loss, be subject to the provisions of Article 14, Sick Leave.
- **B.** If a Workers' Compensation claim which has been denied is later held compensable upon appeal, any time loss benefits shall be reimbursed by the employee to the Employer and the employee's sick leave account credited with an equivalent number of days.
- **C.** If an employee's Workers' Compensation claim is under appeal, and he or she is no longer entitled to medical/dental coverage under Article 22, Health and Welfare, he or she will be entitled to continued coverage under federal COBRA law. The duration of such coverage will be for six months or the legally mandated period, whichever is greater, provided that the employee continues to be eligible and pays the premiums as required.
- **D.** If a denied claim is later held compensable upon appeal, the employee will be entitled to Reimbursement of any premiums paid to the Employer for medical/dental benefits.

20.5

Benefits - The Employer shall continue to provide medical and dental benefits for an employee with a compensable claim and his or her dependent(s) from the first day of occupational disability, subject to the limitations of Article 22 - Health and Welfare, for a period not to exceed six (6) months. Thereafter, any continuation of health and welfare benefits shall be at the option and expense of the employee.

ARTICLE 21 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

21.1

Upon the written request from the employee, the City Manager or his/her designee may grant a regular employee a leave of absence without pay not to exceed one year. Approval of such leave shall be in writing and signed by the City Manager. Upon expiration of a regularly approved leave without pay, the employee shall be reinstated in the position held at the time the leave was granted or to another equivalent position.

21.2

Accrual of Benefits While on Unpaid Leave -An employee in leave without pay status will cease to earn sick leave, vacation leave, seniority, and Employer paid health benefits (except as otherwise provided under FMLA) when leave extends beyond a thirty (30) calendar day period. The employee may participate in the Employer's insurance program by paying his/her own premium.

ARTICLE 22 - HEALTH AND WELFARE

22.1

Medical- The Employer will pay ninety-five percent (95%) of the premium cost for medical coverage for employees and eighty-five percent (85%) for their dependents under the terms of the policy provided by the AWC Benefits Trust two hundred- and fifty-dollar (\$250) Deductible Medical Plan. Participating employees will pay five percent (5%) cost sharing for employee coverage and fifteen percent (15%) cost sharing for dependent coverage through payroll deduction. In addition, the City will offer the AWC Regence High Deductible Medical Plan (HDMP) and pay ninety-seven percent (97%) of the cost for employees and their dependents. Participating employees will pay the three percent (3%) cost sharing through payroll deduction. As an incentive for participating in the HDMP the City will establish and contribute to a Health Savings Account (HSA) in an amount equivalent to fifty-five percent (55%) of the premium cost savings between the HDMP and the AWC Benefits Trust two hundred fifty dollar (\$250) deductible medical plan, based on the employee coverage level. This contribution will be made on a quarterly basis, in January, April, July and October.

22.2

The Employer will offer alternative HMO plans through Kaiser Permanente. The Employer will pay ninety-five percent (95%) of the premium cost for medical for employees and eighty-five percent (85%) for their dependents under the terms of the policy provided by Kaiser Permanente for the two hundred fifty dollar (\$250) deductible plan, The City will continue to offer the Traditional five dollar (\$5) co-pay plan, however, the employee will be responsible for paying the premium difference between the five dollar (\$5) co-pay Traditional plan and the two hundred fifty dollar (\$250) deductible plan. The employee will pay the applicable cost sharing through payroll deduction. Additionally, the Employer will offer Kaiser HDMP and will pay ninety-seven percent (97%) of the cost for employees and their dependents. The employee will pay the three percent (3%) cost sharing through payroll deduction. As an incentive for participating in the HDMP the City will establish and contribute to a Health Savings Account (HSA) in an amount equivalent to fifty-five percent (55%) of the premium cost savings between the HDMP and the Kaiser two hundred fifty dollar (\$250) deductible medical plan, based on the employee coverage level. This contribution will be made in quarterly installments, January, April, July, and October.

22.3

The employee may also opt out of the Employer-provided healthcare program if they have verifiable coverage elsewhere and receive three hundred fifty dollars (\$350) per month of additional taxable income.

22.4

Dental - The Employer will pay ninety-five percent (95%) of the premium cost for dental under Washington Dental Service. The Employer will offer an alternative dental plan through Willamette Dental. The five percent (5%) employee cost sharing will be paid for through payroll deduction.

22.5

The Employer agrees to contribute one hundred percent (100%) of the cost of family optical insurance.

22.6

The Employer may, without changing the quality or value of existing protection, investigate and negotiate alternative insurance coverage at least equal to that experienced by employees and dependents that may be more cost-effective to the Employer.

22.7

The Employer will provide for each employee term life insurance in the amount of fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00). If available through the provider, an employee may, at his/her own cost, purchase term life insurance and supplemental life insurance for a dependent. The employer agrees to deduct such costs from the employee's payroll. The Employer will also provide long-term disability insurance for the employee.

22.8

Employees may participate, at their own expense, in the Washington State Deferred Compensation program, or such other deferred compensation plan as provided by the Employer, which shall be available through payroll deduction.

22.9

Employees who have elected medical coverage through AWC Benefit Trust or Kaiser Permanente will be provided with the Employee Assistance Program. The employer agrees to contribute (100%) of the cost of this insurance.

22.10

Union members have the option of adding their domestic partner of the same or opposite sex and the domestic partner's eligible dependents, if any to their insurance coverage. The value of the benefits provided to an employee's domestic partner (and the domestic partner's eligible dependents, if any) is considered part of the employee's taxable income, unless the employee's domestic partner qualifies as a dependent under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code. The City of Washougal will treat the value of the benefits provided to the employee's domestic partner (and the domestic partner's eligible dependents, if any) as part of the employee's income and will withhold the taxes on the value of those benefits from the employee's paycheck.

22.11

Based on the plan's eligibility requirements, the employee may, at his/her own cost, purchase additional benefits as offered through supplemental insurance policies through payroll deduction. The employer agrees to deduct such costs from the employee through payroll deductions.

22.12

Any changes imposed by the outside carriers of the medical, dental, and optical insurance plans offered, not within the Employer's control, shall be passed through to the employees and dependents covered.

22.13

The Employer agrees to continue to participate in the Public Employees Retirement System.

22.14

Mandatory employee VEBA contributions: The City of Washougal and employees covered by this collective bargaining agreement, agree that an employee's compensation package will be changed such that eligible employees shall receive additional benefits in the form of HRA VEBA Plan contributions equal to one percent (1%), which shall be contributed monthly,

and each eligible employee's salary shall be reduced by an equal amount. Such contributions shall be made on behalf of all employees defined as eligible and shall be considered and referred to as employer contributions.

ARTICLE 23 - WAGES

23.1

The Salary Table shall be as set forth in Appendix A:

Effective January 1, 2025 (which represents a four percent (4.0%) increase over 2024 wages).

Effective January 1, 2026, (which represents a two percent (2.0%) increase over 2025 wages.

23.2

Out of Class Pay - An employee working out of class will be paid five percent (5%) higher than his/her current step if he/she meets the following conditions:

- **A.** The employee has been assigned by the manager in writing to perform substantially all the duties of the higher position.
- **B.** The job assignment is in a range above the employee's current position.
- **C.** The job assignment is for longer than two (2) eight (8)-hour workdays in succession. After two (2) days, the pay is effective from the first hour of the assignment. Out of class pay shall begin when the assignment is made by the manager.

23.3

Longevity - Employees shall receive longevity in addition to their regular salary in accordance with the chart below. Longevity pay will be administered at each pay period (semi-monthly or monthly). To qualify, the employee must be at the top step of the pay range with a minimum of ten (10) years of continuous service based on the employee's most recent regular date of hire. Upon completion of:

10 Years	1.50%
15 Years	1.75%
20 Years	2.25%
25+ Years	2.50%

23.4

Reclassification Review: Refer to the following sections of Chapter 2 of the City of Washougal's Personnel Policies: 2.05, 2.06, 2.07, 2.08, 2.12.05, 2.12.06, and 2.12.07, as they exist on the effective date of this agreement.

ARTICLE 24 - PERSONNEL ACTIONS

24.1

Seniority - Seniority for all purposes of this Agreement shall be defined as an employee's most recent regular date of hire with the Employer and ensuing continuous employment in a regular position covered by this bargaining unit. Time spent as a temporary employee shall

not count toward time served for seniority purposes. Employees' seniority shall not be reduced if on unpaid leave due to FMLA qualifying reasons.

24.2

Probation - All new employees shall serve a six (6) month probationary period or less, at the appointing official's discretion. During the probation period, a new employee shall not be allowed access to the grievance procedure over discipline or discharge. Until the probation period has been met, they shall be considered 'at will' employees. The probationary period may be extended to three (3) additional months by mutual agreement between the Union and Employer. New employees shall be placed at the salary range and step deemed appropriate by the department head. Newly promoted employees according to Article 24.3.1 B and C, reinstated employees according to articles 27.8.2 and 27.8.3 and employees who bump into a new position as an alternative to layoff shall serve a six (6) month trial period or less, at the appointing official's discretion, but are not considered "at will" relative to new employees as defined in this section.

24.3

Promotions:

24.3.1 A promotion can occur in one of the two following ways:

- A. Promotion within a job series: An employee can move from a lower paid position/classification to a higher paid position/classification with increased authority and responsibility (e.g. moving from a Maintenance Worker I to a Maintenance Worker II). This type of promotion does not create a new vacancy or reset an employee's anniversary date for performance evaluation purposes and pay range step increases. This will typically coincide with the employees' annual review. The employee will receive the merit increase based on the employee's annual appraisal, moving the employee to the next step. The resulting pay increase for the promotion within a job series will be one (1) step, or three and one-half percent (3.5%) after the annual performance appraisal and merit increases have been given. Managers wishing to make these moves will submit a recommendation to the department head and review with human resources and City Manager. Exceptions to this timing will be considered on a case-by-case basis. The employee will not serve a probationary period.
- **B.** Promotion due to departmental reorganization and reclassification: An employee may be promoted through departmental reorganization and subsequent actions or through reclassification of the job description. This type of promotion does not create a new vacancy but does reset an employee's anniversary date for performance evaluation purposes and pay range step increases. These changes will be proposed by the Department Head to Human Resources and the City Manager. These changes will result in a move to the next highest step in the new salary range, if available, that provides for a minimum increase of five percent (5%) but no more than a two (2) step increase. The employee will serve a trial period. This promotion does not involve a competitive process. Note: this does not

This promotion does not involve a competitive process. Note: this does not include positions that are placed on a higher range level due to classification/compensation analysis.

C. Promotion into a vacant position: Promotion into a vacant position occurs

when an employee, through the normal recruitment process for an existing vacancy, is selected for a different Union position in a higher pay range. This type of promotion does not change an employee's seniority for the purpose of benefit accruals but does reset the employee's anniversary date for performance evaluation purposes and pay range step increases. An employee selected for a promotion shall move to the next highest step in the new salary range if available, that provides for the equivalent of a two (2) step increase. Should the promotion occur within thirty (30) days prior to an employees' annual performance evaluation and merit increase, the employee will earn the merit increase based on the employees' annual performance evaluation and merit and does not reset the employees' anniversary date for performance evaluation purposes. The employee will serve a trial period. This promotion involves a competitive process.

24.3.2

Selection for Vacancies - If there are one (1) or more qualified internal applicants for the vacancy, including employees wishing to transfer laterally, promote or demote into the position, the Employer will interview and/or test any internal candidates who may meet the minimum qualifications as stated in the posting, prior to interviewing external applicants. The Employer may use an interview process and/or test to make a final determination of whether an internal applicant meets the minimum qualifications. The City shall employ merit principles and shall select candidates for vacancies based on their relative qualifications. In reviewing qualifications and filling job vacancies, the Employer may take into consideration factors including but not limited to education, experience, aptitude, knowledge, interpersonal skills, and the quality and length of employment with the Employer. Where the relative qualifications, as described above, of two (2) or more internal candidates are substantially equal, Employer seniority shall be the deciding factor. Upon request of the Union, the Employer will provide the Union with reasons for not selecting the senior individual. If the employee feels that they have been unjustly dealt with in the matter of selection, they may have the case presented as provided in the Grievance Procedure, up to and inclusive of Step 3. If the employer determines that none of the internal candidates meet the minimum qualifications as stated in the posting, after review of applications and/or interviews and/or testing, the Employer may post the position for external candidates.

24.3.3

Posting - Notice of all position vacancies shall be posted on the human resource.3es careers page of the Employers' website All vacancies to be filled shall be posted internally, prior to posting outside the bargaining unit and shall remain on the bulletin board for a minimum of ten (10) working days unless mutually agreed upon by human resources and the Union. The notice will include position, title, pay range and a brief description of the position, duties including qualifications and necessary skills. Only those employees who file their application during the initial ten (10) day period will be given internal preference over outside candidates for the position. The Employer will make every attempt to complete the recruitment process for those vacancies to be filled within sixty (60) days of the initial posting. If reasonable circumstances exist that would cause a delay in recruitment, the employer will send a written request to the Union suggesting the timeframe for which the position will be posted.

24.3.4

Lateral Transfers - A lateral transfer is defined as the movement from one classification in a pay range to another classification in the same pay range. Depending on circumstances, this may or may not create a vacancy in the organization. This movement does not change the employee's anniversary date for performance evaluation purposes and step increases. These types of changes could be the result of a competitive process, reorganization, or management appointment. Probation will be determined on a case-by-case basis depending on the scope of classification change that takes place.

24.3.5

Trial Period - Employees who are promoted or transfer into a new position shall serve a thirty (30) day trial work period in the new position, at the new salary (if applicable), in order that the Employer may determine that the employee is performing satisfactorily. This promotional trial period does not apply to those employees promoted as defined in section 24.3.1.A. An employee serving a promotional trial period may voluntarily withdraw from that position within thirty (30) days of the appointment without discrimination or loss of seniority and return to his/her former position and pay. This trial period coincides with but does not eliminate the probationary period pursuant to Section 24.2.

24.3.6

Internal Movement Frequency - A newly hired, or an employee who successfully transfers or achieves a promotion must serve at least one year in the new position before the employee is eligible again to transfer or pursue another internal vacancy. New employees must serve at least one year in the position they were hired in before the employee is eligible to transfer or pursue another internal vacancy. Exceptions may be granted in writing by the City Manager in consultation with the affected Department Heads.

24.4

Job Classification - Refer to the following sections of Chapter 2 of the City of Washougal's Personnel Policies: 2.05, 2.06, 2.07, 2.08, 2.12.05, 2.12.06, and 2.12.07, as they exist on the effective date of this agreement.

24.5

Temporary Employees

24.5.1

Appointments to City of Washougal employment on other than an acting or regular basis shall be considered temporary. Such temporary appointments shall be allowed only as follows:

- **A.** As a substitution for a regular employee who is absent from his or her position;
- **B.** When it is impossible to make a regular appointment to the position due to recruitment difficulties;
- C. Where budget appropriations provide only for temporary employment, and/or;
- **D.** During a state of disaster or emergency.
- **E.** Overtime will only be granted to a temporary employee on a limited basis and only if a regular employee is not available or in case of an emergency.

24.5.2

Temporary appointees shall serve up to one thousand and forty (1040) hours per calendar year at the discretion of the City Manager. Temporary appointments may be

extended with mutual agreement between the employer and the union on a case-bycase basis. Time as a temporary employee shall not count toward the initial six (6) month probationary period for the same position if subsequently hired with no break in service unless waived in writing by the City Manager agreed to by the union. Temporaries shall not be rotated through a position.

24.5.3

The same temporary employee candidate may be hired from year to year. However, the end of each temporary assignment severs the employment relationship at that time with the Employer. If the same temporary employee candidate is hired for a new temporary assignment, this new hire does not imply an ongoing relationship nor create an expectation of continued employment once that temporary assignment is concluded. If a temporary employee applies for a regular budgeted position, the temporary employee is considered an external candidate and is ineligible to compete in internal recruitment. Temporary employees are "at-will" employees and have no rights to the grievance process.

24.6

Demotion

24.6.1

No employee shall be demoted to a position for which he or she does not possess the minimum qualifications. An employee being demoted shall be notified at least two (2) weeks prior to demotion. An employee may be demoted:

- **A.** when his or her standard performance falls below that established for his or her particular class;
- **B.** when the employee becomes physically or mentally incapable of performing the duties of his or her position;
- **C.** for disciplinary reasons;
- D. due to a departmental reorganization that affects employee positions;
- E. in lieu of layoff.

24.6.2

A demotion may be authorized by the City Manager for any employee who requests it or to prevent a layoff if a position is available. Any demotion to prevent layoffs is subject to the terms and conditions as outlined in Article 27 - Layoff and Recall.

24.6.3

Upon demotion, an employee shall be paid at the step of the lower salary range which most closely corresponds to the step of the salary range for the class from which he or she is being demoted. In no instance shall an employee be paid outside the established pay range for the position in which the employee is assigned.

ARTICLE 25 - TRAINING AND TRAVEL

25.1

The Employer shall encourage training opportunities for employees and supervisors in order that services rendered to the Employer will be more effective. The City Manager shall assist department heads in meeting training needs in their departments and in developing training programs designed to meet immediate City-wide personnel needs and prepare employees for promotion positions of greater responsibility.

25.2

Training sessions may be conducted during regular working hours at the discretion of department heads.

25.3

Seminars approved for employee attendance by department heads shall be financed by the Employer in the usual manner.

25.4

Tuition Reimbursement - The Employer offers financial support for approved courses as funding and the budget allows for tuition reimbursement. Refer to Chapter 19.02 as it exists on the date of this agreement.

25.5

Travel. When employees are required to travel outside the city on Employer business, reimbursement for expenses incurred shall be determined by the City of Washougal's Personnel Policies. Travel time shall be paid in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act.

ARTICLE 26 - SAFETY AND UNIFORMS

26.1

Job Safety. The City Manager recognizes the need for the development of safe working conditions and practices for every employee and desires to promote on-the-job safety by encouraging the proper design and use of buildings, equipment, tools, and other devices.

26.2

Safety Committee. Responsibility for development, promotion, and coordination of the safety program throughout the various City of Washougal departments shall be a primary function of the Joint Safety Committee. The Joint Safety Committee will be made up of representatives of several operating departments. Representatives of the following departments will be required: Public Works, Community Development.

26.2.1

This committee will assist in the development of departmental safety programs; to include first aid training, coordinate interdepartmental safety practices, and keep other departments informed of the safety programs within the City of Washougal. Supervisors, in conjunction with department safety representatives and Union representatives, are authorized to investigate the practices or conditions which cause or may cause accidental injury or property damage and make recommendations for their correction and prevention.

26.2.2

No employee shall be required to work under unsafe conditions and shall report any such conditions to his or her supervisor immediately.

26.3

Uniforms and Protective Clothing

26.3.1

The Employer will provide the following items on an "as needed" basis; four (4) shirts annually and gloves that is part of a distinguishable employer outfit for such purposes. The employer will also provide muck boots and rain gear (coat, bibs). The muck boots and rain gear must be determined by their immediate manager as worn out and turned in by the employee before being issued a replacement. These clothing provisions do not apply to administrative personnel or animal control.

Additionally, the Employer will budget a clothing provision of \$450 each year for each non-probationary field personnel employee, except for Animal Control. Typical dress for employees would be jeans, shirt, and L & I approved boots.

26.3.2

Administrative personnel will receive three (3) city-logo items each year, the total not to exceed four hundred dollars (\$400), including tax. New employees, after successfully completing their probationary period will be allowed to make clothing purchases in their first year on a pro-rated basis. Employees are expected to dress at work in a manner that presents a positive image for the City of Washougal.

ARTICLE 27 - LAYOFF, RECALL AND BUMPING

27.1

Layoff Procedure - Layoffs or reductions-in-force (including transfers for this purpose and reduction in hours) may be undertaken by the Employer due to budgetary reductions, organizational restructuring, lack of work, reduction or elimination of funds, material change in duties or organization, reduction in force or workload, or in the interests of economy or efficiency.

27.2

Alternatives to Layoff- The Employer will attempt to avoid layoffs and, whenever possible to consider alternatives to layoffs before final decisions are made. To avoid layoff an employee may transfer to a vacant position, if available. An employee may be eligible for a transfer if he/she meets the minimum qualifications for the job. Employees transferred may be required to perform a probationary period as outlined in Article 24.2.

27.3

After the Employer has identified the specific job classification(s) and division(s) (e.g. streets, water, and finance) being reduced, layoffs and resource reductions will be made in the following order:

27.3.1

Temporary, part-time, and newly hired probationary employees shall be laid off prior to regular full-time employees. Part-time employees cannot bump less senior

regular full-time employees.

27.3.2

The order in which employees will be laid off shall be determined based on seniority as defined in Article 27.7.

27.3.3

Any exception to this will be mutually agreed to by the Union and the Employer.

27.4

When an employee is identified for a layoff or reduction-in-force, he/she shall be permitted to move into a job or classification for which the employee meets the minimum qualifications for the job. In doing so, he/she may "bump" the least senior employee in that job or classification within the bargaining unit. Bumping may only occur within the same bargaining unit.

27.4.1

Qualified Employees and Criteria for Bumping and Reassignment: Employees may only be offered positions in accordance with the provisions of this Article based on the employer's assessment of the following criteria:

- 1. Successful completion of any qualifying examinations or certifications as defined by the job position description and/or job announcement within ninety (90) calendar days; and
- **2.** Possession of minimum qualifications as defined by the position description and/or job announcement; and
- **3.** Not currently in discussion with the manager regarding performance-related issues and/or specific areas of performance requiring improvement.

27.4.2

An employee who bumps into a position in a different division as an alternative to layoff shall serve a six (6) month probationary period as outlined in Article 24.2. However, if such employees fail to successfully pass their probationary period, they will be placed on the reinstatement list. Such employees will only be eligible for reinstatement to the position from which they are laid off.

27.5

Notice to the Union - Representatives of the Employer and the Union, shall meet within fifteen (15) working days after the Employer has officially determined that a layoff or reduction-in-force will affect any of the Union members. At this meeting, the Employer shall inform the Union of the details of the layoff and provide a current seniority list as well as any other relevant information. This meeting shall occur prior to notifying the employee(s) selected for reduction or elimination.

27.6

Notice to employees - Each employee to be laid off shall be given at least thirty (30) calendar days' notice of layoff, with a copy to the Union. Employees who remain may be assigned the additional duties of those lower classified positions that were laid off. Such a situation will not result in a decrease in pay or downward reclassification.

27.6.1

Once the Employer has notified the affected employee of layoff and there is an available vacant position or a position for the employee to bump into, he/she must notify Human Resources in writing of his/her intent to accept a vacant position or

exercise bumping rights within ten (10) working days of the initial layoff notice. If notification is not received within the allotted time, rights to vacant positions or to bump shall be waived by the employee. The Employee will subsequently be placed on the reinstatement list.

27.7

Seniority- Seniority for the purposes of layoff, recall, and bumping shall be based upon the time spent in the bargaining unit. Should the seniority of any two or more employees be equal, the respective seniority rights of such employees shall be determined by date of application, and if that is the same, the affected employees shall draw lots. Employee seniority shall not be reduced because of unpaid leave due to protected leave provisions, as provided for under state and federal regulations.

27.8

Recall - Employees who have been laid off, or transferred as an alternative to layoff, are eligible for reinstatement for a period of eighteen (18) months following the date of layoff. The names of persons laid off will be placed on a reinstatement list. Recalled employees will have their accrual rates restored to the same accrual rate as of the date of layoff.

27.8.1

When a vacancy occurs in the same job position for which there exists a reinstatement list, the Employer will fill the vacancy using that list with the understanding that employees must meet the required minimum qualifications for the position to which they would be reinstated into. If there is more than one employee on the reinstatement list eligible for a vacancy in a particular job class, the Employer will use seniority as defined in this Article in determining who shall be offered reinstatement. When an employee is reinstated within eighteen (18) months to the job from which they were laid off, they will be placed into the same step occupied at the time of layoff and will not serve an additional probationary period. Reinstatement notices will be sent by certified mail to the last address reflected in the employee's official personnel file.

27.8.2

Any employee who is reinstated to a job other than the position from which they were laid off shall serve a new probationary period as outlined in Article 24.2. Such employees will be placed at the step of the salary schedule for the new position that is consistent with their salary prior to layoff.

27.8.3

Employees in a reinstatement status may also apply and be considered for job openings outside their job classification prior to or after the layoff. Employees selected for such positions will serve a probationary period as outlined in Article 24.2. "Employees will be placed into the salary schedule for new position consistent with the applicable salary schedule or guidelines."

27.8.4

Once an employee on the reinstatement list is offered a position, the employee must respond within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date of notice, unless extended by mutual consent. The employee shall be responsible for notifying the Human Resources Department of any change in their address or telephone number.

Benefit accrual and service credit will be discontinued while in a layoff status of thirty (30) or more days. However, upon reinstatement, an employee's service date will be maintained, but will be adjusted to deduct the time spent in a layoff status.

27.9

Eligibility for reinstatement ends if:

27.9.1

An employee refuses to accept an offer of reinstatement to a position in the same classification as that from which he/she was laid off.

27.9.2

An employee fails to respond to an offer of reinstatement within fourteen (14) calendar days following the date the offer is mailed.

27.9.3

The employee requests in writing to be removed from the reinstatement list.

27.9.4

The employee resigns or retires.

Definitions:

- 1. Transfer (moves laterally) The movement from one position within a job classification to another position within the same classification. A transferred employee would be placed at the same step in the same range as the position that they transferred from.
- 2. Demotion The movement from a higher paid job classification to a lower paid job classification as a result of bumping. An employee accepting a demotion may serve a probationary period and would be placed at the top step of the lower job classification range or the step in the job classification range that is closest to the range and step they occupied prior to being demoted.

ARTICLE 28 - COMMERCIAL DRIVER'S LICENSE (CDL)

28.1

All employees in applicable positions who are expected to obtain and maintain a commercial driver's license with such endorsements as necessary to operate vehicles assigned to their work unit must be medically and physically able to obtain one. Employees shall be allowed a reasonable period of time to obtain the license as defined in the job description.

28.2

The Employer will provide:

28.2.1

An opportunity for each employee to develop the skill required to obtain the license within said reasonable period.

28.2.2

Reimbursement for fees to obtain and/or renew the license and endorsements for the first attempt, provided that if the employee incurs additional charges because

he or she fails any part of the exam, those charges shall be the employee's responsibility.

28.2.3

The Employer will provide for the required medical/physical examination at a Employer-selected physician's clinic. An employee wishing to use his or her own physician, the Employer will reimburse the employee for the required medical/physical examination up to the amount of the Employer-selected physician's clinic contracted services. Proper documentation for the reimbursement will be required.

28.2.4

For positions requiring a CDL, once an employee has passed their probationary period, the Employer will pay the cost for an employee to attend an accredited or pre- approved training course and the required time to train, test and attain the requisite CDL.

28.2.5

All employees required to maintain a Commercial Drivers' License shall be subject to all rules and regulations issued by the federal government including requirements for drug testing.

28.2.6

The employer will make a reasonable effort to reassign an employee who loses his/her CDL for up to one (1) year to a job that does not require a CDL.

ARTICLE 29 - NO INTERRUPTION OF WORK

29.1

It is agreed there shall be no strike, walkout, refusal to report for work, or other interruption of work by the Union or any employee during the period of this Agreement. It is agreed there shall be no lockouts by the Employer during the period of this agreement.

29.2

In the event that in violation of the provisions of the preceding paragraph a strike, walkout, refusal to report for work, or other interruption of work shall occur, the Union shall not be subject to financial liability for such violation provided that the Union, immediately after the beginning of such violation, shall have (I) publicly declared such action a violation of this Agreement, and (2) in utmost good faith used its best efforts to terminate such violation. It is further agreed that any employee participating in such violation shall, at the discretion of the Employer, be subject to immediate discharge or other disciplinary action.

29.3

A refusal to report for work as used in this Article applies only to a refusal arising out of or related to a labor dispute.

ARTICLE 30 - SEPARABILITY

Should any article, section or portion thereof, of this Agreement be held unlawful and unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, or any administrative agency having

jurisdiction over the subject matter, such decision shall apply only to the specific article, section, or portion thereof directly specified in the decision. Upon the issuance of any such decision, the parties agree to immediately negotiate a substitute, if possible, for the invalidated article, section, or portion thereof. All other portions of this Agreement, and the Agreement as a whole, shall continue without interruption for the term hereof.

ARTICLE 31 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT

31.1

The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations resulting in this Agreement each has had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any and all subjects or matters not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. The wages, benefits, rights and protection of bargaining unit members derive exclusively from this Agreement, not from other Employer policies. The Employer and the Union each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waive the right and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter not specifically referred to or covered in this Agreement, even though such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties are specifically expressed in this Agreement, and such expression is all inclusive. Nothing in this agreement shall waive the Union's right to bargain the impact of any management right exercised by the Employer which is a mandatory subject of bargaining.

31.2

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties and concludes collective bargaining for its term subject only to a desire by both parties to mutually agree to amend or supplement at any time.

ARTICLE 32 - COST SAVINGS COMMITTEE

32.1

A committee will be established for the purpose of reviewing cost-saving proposals as presented by employees covered by this collective bargaining agreement. The review committee will be made up of City of Washougal employees (including Union employees) and management representatives. Selected cost-saving proposals for implementation will need to have robust metrics that will be used to verify savings for the City of Washougal. Employees of such selected proposals will earn a percentage of those savings up to a maximum dollar cap as determined by the Employer. Program policies, procedures, and final determinations re: percentage awards will be at the sole discretion of the Employer. The Committee may also self-identify cost savings measures.

ARTICLE 33 – GPS IN EMPLOYER VEHICLES

33.1

The Employer shall have the right to place video cameras, GPS, or other tracking devices in any employer-owned vehicles. Audio recording in the interior of the vehicles will not take place by the Employer.

33.2

The intent of any vehicle tracking device is:

- To protect the Employer and Union from tort claims, and other claims of wrongdoing
- To manage equipment more efficiently
- Improve diagnostic and repair capabilities
- Save on fuel consumption, repairs, maintenance, and replacement costs
- Dispatch the correct equipment to the correct location as quickly as possible
- Improve upon and document routing, specifically the street sweeper
- Improve driver safety
- Respond to emergencies

33.3

Additional Clarifications:

- GPS tracking devices installed on equipment is intended to improve operation efficiency, and enhance employee safety, not to monitor employee performance.
- Any performance activity observed during the tracking of equipment will not be the basis for disciplinary action unless the activity is egregious in nature. However, the employer may review tracking information for disciplinary purposes in response to a documented incident or complaint, or after an individual employee has received written counselling or discipline advising that tracking may occur due to concerns that specific expectations are not being met, e.g. excessive idle time, speeding, etc. Such individual monitoring will be limited to no more than twelve (12) months from the date of the disciplinary or expectations letter.
- Union members (Lead Mechanic, Management Analyst) will have limited access to the network and will be unable to see vehicle locations.
- Tampering with the GPS units will not be tolerated as defined in City of Washougal Personnel Policy 23.04.
- The GPS tracking network is a public asset and is subject to public records request criteria.
- The Union will receive notification if the capabilities of the telematics or GPS tracking is to significantly increase, for example, if the devices become capable of tracking tailgating, installation of cameras, or if the Employer considers making live telematics data available to the public. The Employer will bargain the impacts of any future change to telematics or GPS tracking capabilities with the Union.
- As allowed by PECBA/RCW 41.56, the Union Staff Representative could have limited access to the GPS programs to review after a complaint of policy violation is assumed.

ARTICLE 34 - CERTIFICATIONS

<u>34.1</u>

The purpose of the bilingual pay incentive is to compensate employees who have passed a bilingual proficiency evaluation and are serving in positions designated by Human Resources as bilingual.

Utilizing recognized evaluation tools, such as third-party testing, Human Resources will determine whether an employee has reached proficiency.

Positions designated as bilingual must meet the following criteria:

The position requires regular use of bilingual skills

• The position is performed in a setting where there is a demonstrated need for the designation.

Procedures of requesting bilingual designation for the positions:

- Departments shall request a bilingual designation by providing written justification to Human Resources. The justification should describe the need, nature, and frequency of bilingual duties.
- Applicants of incumbents for a bilingual designated position must pass a bilingual proficiency evaluation to be eligible for bilingual incentive pay.
 - Departments may request a bilingual designation be removed from a position by providing written justification for the change.

Compensation:

- Bilingual incentive pay will be effective at the beginning of the pay period following completion of testing.
- Employees who have passed the proficiency evaluation and are in a bilingual designated position shall have fifty dollars (\$50) per month added to their base salary.

In the event an employee transfers to a position that is not designated as bilingual, or if the bilingual designation of the position is removed, the bilingual incentive pay will cease.

ARTICLE 35 - CLASSIFICATION & COMPENSATION POLICY PROVISION

35.1

This Employer agrees to expedite the Classification & Compensation Policy timeline, moving the date of commencement up to 2026, with implementation of findings on January 1, 2027. The Employer additionally agrees to immediately change the rate of pay by at least three and one-half percent (3.5%) or one step at implementation of the findings for all positively affected staff.

ARTICLE 36 - DURATION

36.1

This Agreement shall be effective as of January 1, 2025, and shall remain in full force and effect through December 31, 2026. Either party may give written notice to the other party between January 1st and September 1st of 2026 that it wishes to modify the Agreement for any reason. If such notice is given, the parties agree that they will meet and negotiate from time to time within the sixty (60) day period immediately preceding the termination date of this Agreement, or earlier if mutually agreed to by the parties to determine the terms and provisions of a new collective bargaining agreement for a succeeding period. This Agreement may be amended in writing at any time during its effective term, provided there is mutual written consent of both parties.

LEAVE BLANK

LEAVE BLANK

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties hereto have set their signatures this _____ day of _____, 2025

FOR THE UNION:

FOR THE EMPLOYER:

Mike Boyer, 307-W Business Representative

David Scott, City Manager

Chris Strong, Local 307-W President

Nate Wormer, Local 307-W

Karen Frantz, Local 307-W

Amanda Goulding, Local 307-W

Beverly Rivera, Local 307-W

Suzette Pump, Local 307-W

General Services Supervisor	Utility Supervisor	Accountant	Management Analyst	Planner	Utility Specialist	Building Inspector Specialist	Lead Mechanic	Building Inspector	Community Aesthetics Program Coordinator	Engineering Technician I	Stormwater Program Coordinator	Communications Specialist	Lead Maintenance Worker	Code Enforcement Officer	Program Procurement Specialist	Finance & Utility Billing Analyst	Finance & Payroll Analyst	Mechanic	Utility Maintenance Worker II	Community Engagement Program Coordinator	Executive Assistant	Maintenance Worker II	Asst City Clerk / Accounting Specialist	Utility Maintenance Worker I	Permit Technician	Police Admin Support Specialist	Senior Administrative Assistant	Maintenance Worker I	Animal Control Officer	Accounting Specialist	Admini strative Assistant			Accounting Clerk							CLASSIFICATIONS		
Γ	20			19		18		17					16		15				14			13	12				11				10	9	8	7	6	5	*	u	2	-	RANGES		STEPS
	\$6,765.89			\$6,537.09		\$6,316.01		\$6,102.44					\$5,896.07		\$5,696.70				\$5,504.05			\$5,317.93	\$5,138.10				\$4,964.35				\$4,796.47	\$4,634.27	\$4,477.52	\$4,326.11	\$4,179.82	\$4,038.50	\$3,901.93	\$3,769.96	\$3,642.48	\$3,519.32			-
	\$7,002.69			\$6,765.89		\$6,537.09		\$6,316.01					\$6,102.44		\$5,896.07				\$5,696.70			\$5,504.05	\$5,317.93				\$5,138.10				\$4,964.35	\$4,796.47	\$4,634.27	\$4,477.52	\$4,326.11	\$4,179.82	\$4,038.50	\$3,901.93	\$3,769.96	\$3,642.48			2
	\$7,247.79			\$7,002.69		\$6,765.89		\$6,537.09					\$6,316.01		\$6,102.44				\$5,896.07			\$5,696.70	\$5,504.05				\$5,317.93				\$5,138.10	\$4,964.35	\$4,796.47	\$4,634.27	\$4,477.52	\$4,326.11	\$4,179.82	\$4,038.50	\$3,901.93	\$3,769.96			3
	\$7,501.46			\$7,247.79		\$7,002.69		\$6,765.89					\$6,537.09		\$6,316.01				\$6,102.44			\$5,896.07	\$5,696.70				\$5,504.05				\$5,317.93	\$5,138.10	\$4,964.35	\$4,796.47	\$4,634.27	\$4,477.52	\$4,326.11	\$4,179.82	\$4,038.50	\$3,901.93	and a seal	13.5% bet	4
	\$7,764.00			\$7,501.46		\$7,247.79		\$7,002.69					\$6,765.89		\$6,537.09				\$6,316.01			\$6,102.44	\$5,896.07				\$5,696.70				\$5,504.05	\$5,317.93	\$5,138.10	\$4,964.35	\$4,796.47	\$4,634.27	\$4,477.52	\$4,326.11	\$4,179.82	\$4,038.50	fording many	(3.5% between Steps)	5
	\$8,035.74			\$7,764.00		\$7,501.46		\$7,247.79					\$7,002.69		\$6,765.89				\$6,537.09			\$6,316.01	\$6,102.44				\$5,896.07				\$5,696.70	\$5,504.05	\$5,317.93	\$5,138.10	\$4,964.35	\$4,796.47	\$4,634.27	\$4,477.52	\$4,326.11	\$4,179.82			6
	\$8,316.99			\$8,035.74		\$7,764.00		\$7,501.46					\$7,247.79		\$7,002.69				\$6,765.89			\$6,537.09	\$6,316.01				\$6,102.44				\$5,896.07	\$5,696.70	\$5,504.05	\$5,317.93	\$5,138.10	\$4,964.35	\$4,796.47	\$4,634.27	\$4,477.52	\$4,326.11			7
	\$8,608.10			\$8,316.99		\$8,035.74		\$7,764.00					\$7,501.46		\$7,247.79				\$7,002.69			\$6,765.89	\$6,537.09				\$6,316.01				\$6,102.44	\$5,896.07	\$5,696.70	\$5,504.05	\$5,317.93	\$5,138.10	\$4,964.35	\$4,796.47	\$4,634.27	\$4,477.52			80
	\$8,909.37			\$8,608.10		\$8,316.99		\$8,035.74					\$7,764.00		\$7,501.46				\$7,247.79			\$7,002.69	\$6,765.89				\$6,537.09				\$6,316.01	\$6,102.44	\$5,896.07	\$5,696.70	\$5,504.05	\$5,317.93	\$5,138.10	\$4,964.35	\$4,796.47	\$4,634.27			9

2025 307-W SALARY SCHEDULE (4.0% COLA)

General Services Supervisor	Utility Supervisor	Accountant	Management Analyst	Planner	Utility Specialist	Building Inspector Specialist	Lead Mechanic	Building Inspector	Community Aesthetics Program Coordinator	Engineering Technician I	Stormwater Program Coordinator	Communications Specialist	Lead Maintenance Worker	Code Enforcement Officer	Program Procurement Specialist	Finance & Utility Billing Analyst	Finance & Payroll Analyst	Mechanic	Utility Maintenance Worker II	Community Engagement Program Coordinator	Executive Assistant	Maintenance Worker II	Asst City Clerk / Accounting Specialist	Utility Maintenance Worker I	Permit Technician	Police Admin Support Specialist	Senior Administrative Assistant	Maintenance Worker I	Animal Control Officer	Accounting Specialist	Administrative Assistant			Accounting Clerk							CLASSIFICATIONS		
Γ	20			61		18		17					16		15				14			ವ	12				11				10	6	8	7	6	6	4	3	2	-	RANGES	0.000	STEPS
	\$6,901.20			\$6,667.83		\$6,442.33		\$6,224.49					\$6,013.99		\$5,810.64				\$5,614.14			\$5,424.28	\$5,240.86				\$5,063.63				\$4,892.40	\$4,726.96	\$4,567.07	\$4,412.63	\$4,263.42	\$4,119.27	\$3,979.97	\$3,845.36	\$3,715.32	\$3,589.70			-
	\$7,142.75			\$6,901.20		\$6,667.83		\$6,442.33					\$6,224.49		\$6,013.99				\$5,810.64			\$5,614.14	\$5,424.28				\$5,240.86				\$5,063.63	\$4,892,40	\$4,726.96	\$4,567.07	\$4,412.63	\$4,263.42	\$4,119.27	\$3,979.97	\$3,845.36	\$3,715.32		,	2
	\$7,392.75			\$7,142.75		\$6,901.20		\$6,667.83					\$6,442.33		\$6,224.49				\$6,013.99			\$5,810.64	\$5,614,14				\$5,424.28				\$5,240.86	\$5,063.63	\$4,892.40	\$4,726.96	\$4,567.07	\$4,412.63	\$4,263.42	\$4,119.27	\$3,979.97	\$3,845.36		,	4
	\$7,651.49			\$7,392.75		\$7,142.75		\$6,901.20					\$6,667.83		\$6,442.33				\$6,224.49			\$6,013.99	\$5,810.64				\$5,614.14				\$5,424.28	\$5,240.86	\$ 5,063.63	\$4,892,40	\$4,726.96	\$4,567.07	\$4,412.63	\$4,263.42	\$4,119.27	\$3,979.97	to see an and	13 5% bo	4
	\$7,919.28			\$7,651,49		\$7,392.75		\$7,142.75					\$6,901.20		\$6,667.83				\$6,442.33			\$6,224.49	\$6,013.99				\$5,810.64				\$5,614.14	\$5,424.28	\$5,240.86	\$5,063.63	\$4,892,40	\$4,726.96	\$4,567.07	\$4,412.63	\$4,263.42	\$4,119.27	fording in hair	(3.5% between Steps)	5
	\$8,196.45			\$7,919.28		\$7,651.49		\$7,392.75					\$7,142.75		\$6,901.20				\$6,667.83			\$6,442.33	\$6,224.49				\$6,013.99				\$5,810.64	\$5,614,14	\$5,424.28	\$5,240.86	\$5,063.63	\$4,892.40	\$4,726.96	\$4,567.07	\$4,412.63	\$4,263.42		,	6
	\$8,483.33			\$8,196,45		\$7,919.28		\$7,651,49					\$7,392.75		\$7,142.75				\$6,901.20			\$6,667.83	\$6,442.33				\$6,224.49				\$6,013.99	\$5,810.64	\$5,614.14	\$5,424.28	\$5,240.86	\$5,063.63	\$4,892.40	\$4,726.96	\$4,567.07	\$4,412.63			7
	\$8,780.26			\$8,483.33		\$8,196.45		\$7,919.28					\$7,651.49		\$7,392.75				\$7,142.75			\$6,901.20	\$6,667.83				\$6,442.33				\$6,224.49	\$6,013.99	\$5,810.64	\$5,614.14	\$5,424.28	\$5,240.86	\$5,063.63	\$4,892.40	\$4,726.96	\$4,567.07		ľ	30
	\$9,087.56			\$8,780.26		\$8,483.33		\$8,196.45					\$7,919.28		\$7,651.49				\$7,392.75			\$7,142.75	\$6,901.20				\$6,667.83				\$6,442.33	\$6,224.49	\$6,013.99	\$5,810.64	\$5,614.14	\$5,424.28	\$5,240.86	\$5,063.63	\$4,892.40	\$4,726.96		,	9

2026 307-W SALARY SCHEDULE (2.0% COLA)

Resolution No. <u>1248</u>

A RESOLUTION amending sections 2.A.02 Longevity Pay, 2.A.04 Sick Leave, and 2.A.06 Benefits and Exhibit "A" of Chapter 2A of the City's Personnel Policy Manual with reference to the non-represented employees.

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Washougal passed a resolution setting the 2025 and 2026 cost of living adjustments (COLAs) for Department Heads and other Non-Represented Employees at its November 12, 2024 regular meeting, including a 3% COLA in 2025 and a 3% COLA in 2026;

WHEREAS, the Local 307-W of the Washington State Council of County and City Employees (WSCCCE) and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), AFL-CIO has ratified a collective bargaining agreement covering 2025-2026, which represents the tentative agreement between the City of Washougal and the Local 307-W;

WHEREAS, the ratified collective bargaining agreement includes a 4% COLA for bargaining unit employees in 2025 and a 2% COLA for bargaining unit employees in 2026 as well as changes to the longevity pay, sick leave and benefits sections;

WHEREAS, the Council desires to bring consistency between the Local 307-W and non-represented employees for COLAs and other provisions;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WASHOUGAL as follows:

Section I

That Exhibit "A" of Chapter 2A of the City's Personnel Policies Manual that addresses the Compensation for Department Heads and other Non-Represented Employees be amended to increase the salary schedule by 4% for a COLA for 2025. This COLA is effective January 1, 2025. A copy of the amended salary schedule showing those resulting adjustments is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit "1" and by this reference incorporated herein.

Section II

That Exhibit "A" of Chapter 2A of the City's Personnel Policies Manual that addresses the Compensation for Department Heads and other Non-Represented Employees be amended to increase the salary schedule by 2% for a COLA adjustment for 2026. A copy of the amended salary schedule showing those resulting adjustments is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit "2" and by this reference incorporated herein.

Section III

That Sections 2.A.02 Longevity Pay, Section 2.A.04 Sick Leave, and Section 2.A.06 Benefits of Chapter 2A of the City's Personnel Policies Manual be amended to revise the longevity pay schedule, to increase the end of calendar year sick leave carry over balance from 120 days (960 hours) to 130 days (1040 hours), and to increase the monthly payment to opt out of the City-provided healthcare coverage from \$250 to \$350 as to mirror the terms of the ratified collective bargain agreement with the Local 307-W. These revisions are effective January 1, 2025, and are attached hereto, marked as Exhibit "3" and by this reference incorporated herein.

PASSED by the Council of the City of Washougal at regular meeting on the 10th day of February 2025.

City of Washougal, Washington

Mayor

ATTEST:

Finance Director / City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney

City of Washougal 2025 Salary Table-Exhibit A 4.0% COLA

Directors	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
City Manager					PER CO	NTRACT				
Community Development Director	9,994.74	10,344.56	10,706.61	11,081.34	11,469.18	11,870.61	12,286.08	12,716.10	13,161.16	13,621.80
Community Services & Strategy Director	9,994.74	10,344.56	10,706.61	11,081.34	11,469.18	11,870.61	12,286.08	12,716.10	13,161.16	13,621.80
Finance Director	9,994.74	10,344.56	10,706.61	11,081.34	11,469.18	11,870.61	12,286.08	12,716.10	13,161.16	13,621.80
Human Resources Director	9,445.73	9,776.32	10,118.50	10,472.64	10,839.19	11,218.55	11,611.21	12,017.60	12,438.21	12,873.55
Police Chief	10,537.73	10,906.55	11,288.28	11,683.37	12,092.29	12,515.52	12,953.56	13,406.94	13,876.18	14,361.85
Public Works Director	10,408.85	10,773.16	11,150.22	11,540.48	11,944.40	12,362.45	12,795.14	13,242.97	13,706.47	14,186.21
Managers and Supervisors										
Accounting Supervisor	6,917.40	7,159.52	7,410.09	7,669.45	7,937.88	8,215.70	8,503.25	8,800.87	9,108.90	9,427.71
Assistant Finance Director	8,205.08	8,492.26	8,789.49	9,097.12	9,415.52	9,745.07	10,086.14	10,439.15	10,804.53	11,182.68
Building Official/Manager	7,479.96	7,741.76	8,012.72	8,293.17	8,583.43	8,883.85	9,194.78	9,516.60	9,849.68	10,194.42
City Engineer	8,879.53	9,190.31	9,511.97	9,844.90	10,189.46	10,546.10	10,915.21	11,297.25	11,692.65	12,101.90
Communications Manager	6,271.95	6,491.47	6,718.67	6,953.82	7,197.20	7,449.11	7,709.83	7,979.67	8,258.96	8,548.02
Community Aesthetics Manager	6,271.95	6,491.47	6,718.67	6,953.82	7,197.20	7,449.11	7,709.83	7,979.67	8,258.96	8,548.02
Community Engagement Manager	6,271.95	6,491.47	6,718.67	6,953.82	7,197.20	7,449.11	7,709.83	7,979.67	8,258.96	8,548.02
General Services Manager	7,479.96	7,741.76	8,012.72	8,293.17	8,583.43	8,883.85	9,194.78	9,516.60	9,849.68	10,194.42
Information Technology Manager	8,205.08	8,492.26	8,789.49	9,097.12	9,415.52	9,745.07	10,086.14	10,439.15	10,804.53	11,182.68
Parks & Cemetery Program Manager	6,773.88	7,010.97	7,256.35	7,510.33	7,773.19	8,045.25	8,326.84	8,618.28	8,919.92	9,232.11
Police Captain	9,145.01	9,465.09	9,796.37	10,139.24	10,494.11	10,861.40	11,241.56	11,635.01	12,042.24	12,463.72
Public Works Business Manager	8,205.08	8,492.26	8,789.49	9,097.12	9,415.52	9,745.07	10,086.14	10,439.15	10,804.53	11,182.68
Public Works Operations Superintendent	8,879.53	9,190.31	9,511.97	9,844.90	10,189.46	10,546.10	10,915.21	11,297.25	11,692.65	12,101.90
Senior Analyst	7,081.83	7,329.69	7,586.23	7,851.75	8,126.56	8,410.99	8,705.38	9,010.06	9,325.42	9,651.81
Strategic Initiatives Manager	8,879.53	9,190.31	9,511.97	9,844.90	10,189.46	10,546.10	10,915.21	11,297.25	11,692.65	12,101.90
Water/Wastewater Superintendent	7,779.36	8,051.63	8,333.44	8,625.11	8,926.99	9,239.44	9,562.81	9,897.52	10,243.92	10,602.46
Non-Exempt										
Assistant to the City Manager	5,473.11	5,664.67	5,862.93	6,068.13	6,280.52	6,500.34	6,727.85	6,963.32	7,207.04	7,459.28
IT Systems Administrator	5,696.70	5,896.08	6,102.45	6,316.03	6,537.09	6,765.90	7,002.70	7,247.77	7,501.46	7,764.01

City of Washougal 2026 Salary Table-Exhibit A 2.0% COLA

Directors	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
City Manager	_				PER CO	NTRACT				
Community Development Director	10,194.63	10,551.45	10,920.75	11,302.97	11,698.57	12,108.02	12,531.80	12,970.42	13,424.39	13,894.24
Community Services & Strategy Director	10,194.63	10,551.45	10,920.75	11,302.97	11,698.57	12,108.02	12,531.80	12,970.42	13,424.39	13,894.24
Finance Director	10,194.63	10,551.45	10,920.75	11,302.97	11,698.57	12,108.02	12,531.80	12,970.42	13,424.39	13,894.24
Human Resources Director	9,634.64	9,971.85	10,320.87	10,682.10	11,055.97	11,442.92	11,843.44	12,257.95	12,686.98	13,131.03
Police Chief	10,748.48	11,124.68	11,514.05	11,917.04	12,334.14	12,765.83	13,212.63	13,675.08	14,153.70	14,649.09
Public Works Director	10,617.03	10,988.62	11,373.23	11,771.29	12,183.29	12,609.70	13,051.04	13,507.83	13,980.60	14,469.93
Managers and Supervisors										
Accounting Supervisor	7,055.75	7,302.71	7,558.29	7,822.84	8,096.64	8,380.02	8,673.32	8,976.89	9,291.07	9,616.26
Assistant Finance Director	8,369.18	8,662.11	8,965.28	9,279.06	9,603.83	9,939.97	10,287.86	10,647.94	11,020.62	11,406.34
Building Official/Manager	7,629.56	7,896.60	8,172.97	8,459.03	8,755.10	9,061.52	9,378.68	9,706.94	10,046.68	10,398.30
City Engineer	9,057.12	9,374.12	9,702.21	10,041.80	10,393.25	10,757.02	11,133.52	11,523.19	11,926.51	12,343.93
Communications Manager	6,397.39	6,621.29	6,853.04	7,092.90	7,341.15	7,598.09	7,864.02	8,139.27	8,424.13	8,718.98
Community Aesthetics Manager	6,397.39	6,621.29	6,853.04	7,092.90	7,341.15	7,598.09	7,864.02	8,139.27	8,424.13	8,718.98
Community Engagement Manager	6,397.39	6,621.29	6,853.04	7,092.90	7,341.15	7,598.09	7,864.02	8,139.27	8,424.13	8,718.98
General Services Manager	7,629.56	7,896.60	8,172.97	8,459.03	8,755.10	9,061.52	9,378.68	9,706.94	10,046.68	10,398.30
Information Technology Manager	8,369.18	8,662.11	8,965.28	9,279.06	9,603.83	9,939.97	10,287.86	10,647.94	11,020.62	11,406.34
Parks & Cemetery Program Manager	6,909.36	7,151.19	7,401.48	7,660.53	7,928.66	8,206.15	8,493.37	8,790.64	9,098.31	9,416.75
Police Captain	9,327.91	9,654.39	9,992.29	10,342.02	10,704.00	11,078.63	11,466.39	11,867.71	12,283.08	12,712.99
Public Works Business Manager	8,369.18	8,662.11	8,965.28	9,279.06	9,603.83	9,939.97	10,287.86	10,647.94	11,020.62	11,406.34
Public Works Operations Superintendent	9,057.12	9,374.12	9,702.21	10,041.80	10,393.25	10,757.02	11,133.52	11,523.19	11,926.51	12,343.93
Senior Analyst	7,223.47	7,476.29	7,737.95	8,008.79	8,289.10	8,579.21	8,879.49	9,190.26	9,511.92	9,844.84
Strategic Initiatives Manager	9,057.12	9,374.12	9,702.21	10,041.80	10,393.25	10,757.02	11,133.52	11,523.19	11,926.51	12,343.93
Water/Wastewater Superintendent	7,934.94	8,212.67	8,500.11	8,797.62	9,105.53	9,424.23	9,754.07	10,095.47	10,448.80	10,814.51
Non-Exempt										
Assistant to the City Manager	5,582.57	5,777.96	5,980.19	6,189.50	6,406.13	6,630.34	6,862.40	7,102.59	7,351.18	7,608.47
IT Systems Administrator	5,810.63	6,014.00	6,224.50	6,442.35	6,667.84	6,901.21	7,142.75	7,392.73	7,651.49	7,919.29

EXHIBIT 3

Chapter 2 - A COMPENSATION – DEPARTMENT HEADS AND OTHER NON-REPRESENTATED EMPLOYEES

2.A.02 Longevity Pay

Employees affected by this chapter will be eligible for longevity pay. The percentage of longevity pay is based on years of services as follows and the employee must be at step ten of his or her respective salary schedule:

10 – 14 years of service	1.25% 1.50% of base salary
15 - 19 years of service	1.50%-1.75% of base salary
20 - 24 years of service	2.00% 2.25% of base salary
25 + years of service	2.50% of base salary

2.A.04 Sick Leave

Regular full-time employees affected by this chapter will accrue one day (8 hours) of sick leave per month. Regular part-time employees accrue sick leave in proportion to the numbers of hours worked per week. Sick leave accruals during months when an employee works less than the standard workweek are prorated based on the number of hours actually worked. At the end of calendar sick leave accrual year unused paid sick leave balances of 120 days (960 hours) 130 days (1040 hours) or less will carry over to the following year. Sick leave may be used once accumulated but cannot be used in advance of the accrual. Employees affected by this chapter who have accrued in excess of sixty days (480 hours) of sick leave may annually in January trade four (4) hours of sick leave for one (1) hour of vacation in excess of the 480 hours of sick leave. The employee must maintain a minimum of 480 hours of sick leave at the time of the trade request. Employees hired on or before July 6, 2010 with five or more years of service will be paid 25% for any unused sick leave balance upon leaving City employment. Those employees hired after July 6, 2010 will not be eligible for the 25% payout of unused sick leave.

2.A.06 Benefits

The employee may also opt out of the City-provided healthcare program if they have verifiable coverage elsewhere and receive $\frac{250}{50}$ per month of additional taxable income.